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Financial Highlights HEBE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+-HLEE
2018 2017 Change
—E-N\F —E—tF g

HK$’000 HK$'000 %

FET FET
Revenue =E 3 1,305,166 1,325,082 -1.5%
Gross Profit EH 128,862 191,537 -32.7%

Gross Profit % EFIE 9.9% 14.5%
Net Profit 7t F| 46,780 72,947 -35.9%

Net Profit% AP 3.6% 5.5%
HK cents HK cents %
Earnings Per Share GRRER A 13.9 21.7 -35.9%

Dividend Per Share — Interim B E —F 8 2.0 2.0

Dividend Per Share — Final B E —RE 6.0 10.5
Dividend Per Share - Total TR E — 45 8.0 12.5 -36%

As at 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2018 2017 Change
Notes —E-NF ZZFT—+tF &
it Day Day

x S

Inventory Turnover Days FEEEXE 1 29 26 +3
Trade Receivables and Bills JEWE 5 R %

Receivable Turnover Days e IEEEPN - 2 81 70 +11
Trade Payables Turnover Days JENESEFREAERE 3 60 61 -1
Gearing Ratio EEBERLEX 4 3.6% 4.2% -0.6%
Return on Equity e T EIR e 5 41% 6.4% -2.3%
Notes: Hat -

7. Inventory turnover days is equal to the average of the opening and 1 HBERAESXREESRBVIEBERTEEH
closing inventory divided by the cost of sales and multiplied by the HRAHEKRABRNEFRE
number of days for the year

2. Trade receivables and bills receivable turnover days is equal to trade 2 BIREWERRERZERRAEXHESN
receivables and bills receivable divided by the revenue and multiplied HHRWEER N EWNEERBRIAS EEER
by the number of days for the year A2 FRE

3. Trade Payable turnover days is equal to trade payables divided by 3 ENESEFAEXBEERENE SR
the cost of sales and multiplied by the number of days for the year TR ERABRLNEFRE

*4.  Gearing ratio is equal to the total borrowings divided by the equity Y BAEARBLERIDBEEE QR AKREE

*6. Return on Equity is equal to the net profit for the year divided by the 5 %R a0 3R 3R AR A AN TS A U BR LA B
average of opening and closing equity 1 B2 HA R A 3R 2 19 88

4  Allan International Holdings Limited S & BIBR £ E AR A T



Letter to Shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Allan International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2018.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s sales turnover
decreased by 1.5% to HK$1,305.2 million (2017: HK$1,325.1
million) and the consolidated net profit decreased by 35.9% to
HK$46.8 million (2017: HK$72.9 million). Basic earnings per share
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 was HK13.9
cents (2017: HK21.7 cents). The Board of Directors has resolved
to recommend at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting the
payment of a final dividend of HK6.0 cents (2017: HK10.5 cents) per
share for the year ended 31 March 2018 to the shareholders on 12
September 2018 whose names appear on the Register of Members
of the Company on 24 August 2018. Together with the interim
dividend of HK2.0 cents per share paid in January this year, the total
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 will be HK8.0 cents per
share (2017: HK12.5 cents).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is engaged in design, manufacturing and trading of a
wide range of household electrical appliances.

Business environment for the year ended 31 March 2018 continued
to be difficult and challenging. Sales turnover dropped across all 3
major markets with weak demands. Fierce competition and pressure
from customers for lower product selling prices have affected the
sales turnover adversely.

During the year under review, sales turnover decreased by 1.5% to
HK$1,305.2 million. Sales turnover to Europe decreased by 1.3% to
HK$646.7 million representing 49.5% of the Group’s sales turnover.
Sales turnover to Asia decreased by 1.7% to HK$327.0 million
representing 25.1% of the Group’s sales turnover. Sales turnover
to America decreased by 2.7% to HK$293.6 million representing
22.5% of the Group’s sales turnover. Sales turnover to other
markets increased by 6.5% to HK$37.9 million representing 2.9% of
the Group’s sales turnover.

R R
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Letter to Shareholders

Gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 decreased by 32.7%
to HK$128.9 million. Gross profit margin decreased from 14.5% to
9.9%. The deterioration in gross profit margin was mainly due to
increase in raw material costs, appreciation in Renminbi, shortage of
skilled labour and increase in manufacturing costs in the PRC. Due
to immense competition, we were not able to pass on these cost
impacts onto our customers.

The Group continued to apply stringent control on all costs and
expenses. Selling and distribution expenses decreased by 0.5%
to HK$24.6 million. As a percentage to sales turnover, selling
and distribution expenses maintained at 1.9% for both years.
Administration expenses decreased by 7.8% to HK$108.7 million.
As a percentage to sales turnover, administration expenses
decreased from 8.9% to 8.3% compared to last year.

On 13 January 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to disposal of a property,
namely, all that 12th floor of Zung Fu Industrial Building, 1067 King’s
Road, Hong Kong at a cash consideration of HK$179.0 million.
In addition, pursuant to the agreement, upon completion of the
transaction, the Group continues to occupy the property by entering
into a tenancy agreement with the Purchaser in respect of the
Property for three years commencing from the date of completion, 3
March 2016. This sale and leaseback arrangement resulted in a gain
of HK$110.8 million recognised in the year ended 31 March 2016.
Amortization of deferred income arising thereof for the year ended
31 March 2018 was HK$19.3 million (2017: HK19.3 million).

The investment property located in Wanchai, Hong Kong was
revaluated at HK$281 million at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$250.8
million) giving rise to an increase in fair value of HK$30.2
million in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Net Profit for the year decreased by 35.9% to HK$46.8 million

(2017: HK$72.9 million). Net profit margin decreased from 5.5% to
3.6% compared to last year.

Allan International Holdings Limited ZE @ BB £ B AR L T

B SRR

HE-_Z—-N\FE=ZA=+—HIEEZE
R BB82.7%E1182,8008 & T EF X M
145% N EQ.9% c EMXHEFTEEMR
REMBRA LA ARMFE - R ERR
TARBRERAEERA ERTE - AR BT
R RPIREFLERRNBENEETER -

REBEBELEMANARFSE RN
Pl o SHE R R M 2 0.5%E2,4608
B oHERDHASGHEEEE 2D
Lt 55 PR A 4 35 1E1.9% K F o 17 BRSO
7.8%ZE1E8TOB AT - TTHHAIGIHE &%
BEZADLAEF 28.9%H I E8.3% °

MN-E—XNE—A+=H AEFELR BT
FZFIU—HEEAYN HEBTEREE
1067THICFITEREIERE - HEeRE
B1E7,9008 B Lo N RIBES KL%
ERRR % AEBREFHZYE L
—EAY HEPA=F AR FTKA "
M- XNE=-A=H:t AgEFR
ZYE-REERERLEANTH BEAE
B A RB 181,080 WHREE=
T-XNFZAZ+BLFRAER-BE=
T-NFZAZT+—HLEFE EEBAH
5 51,9308 8L (ZF—+F :1,9308 8
TT) °

MRBEBEFTHRENEER T —N\F
=A=+—HER{A2E8,1008E T (=F
—+4 : 2185,0808 /8 T) - ERAFAELE N
302088 L Bt A Ea hEME2HE
W Es &R A o

R E 4R 2 35.9% 24,6808 78 T ( =
T+ F 720088 0) AR EREFZ
5.5% % %23.6% °



Letter to Shareholders

PROSPECTS

It is impossible to predict how the on-going trade dispute among
China and US and the European Union would affect the global
economy. The impact on Allan and our customers are therefore
unknown yet. As such, we expect the business environment to be
highly volatile and full of many challenges. We expect the adverse
conditions of rising raw material costs, shortage in skilled labour,
rising manufacturing costs and currency fluctuations would continue.
On top of this, we are recently facing the issue of a sudden increase
in leadtime and limited supply in certain electronic components. This
will inevitably drive up the costs of these electronic components
and will cause delay in our delivery schedules to our customers. We
are currently working closely with our customers and suppliers to
mitigate the negative impact.

All in all, we will stay vigilant and versatile in our manufacturing
capacity and resources planning in response to fluctuations in
market demands. We would strive to stay slim and efficient through
automation, manpower streamlining and process improvements. We
would invest in our engineering and R&D capabilities to offer total
project management with unique and innovative product platforms
to our customers. Stringent cost and expense control, productivity
efficiency improvements, persistence in quality products and
engineering and R&D capabilities would continue to be our focus
and top priorities. We continue to seek growth opportunities through
new customers and new product categories. We will also look for
business opportunities to create higher value to our shareholders.

With our prudent and pragmatic business approach, financial
strength and commitment to excel, we will strive on and tread
cautiously to ride through the current and coming difficulties and
challenges.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had total assets of HK$1,587.4
million (2017: HK$1,608.2 million) which was financed by current
liabilities of HK$405.4 million (2017: HK$417.9 million), long-term
liabilities, deferred income and taxation of HK$44.0 million (2017:
HK$72.1 million) and shareholders’ equity of HK$1,138.0 million
(2017: HK$1,118.2 million).
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Letter to Shareholders

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position and
a healthy liquidity position. As at 31 March 2018, the Group held
HK$597.0 million (2017: HK$731.3 million) in cash and bank
deposits. They were mainly placed in Renminbi and US dollar
short term deposits, except for temporary balances held in other
currencies as required pending specific payments. For the year
ended 31 March 2018, the Group generated net cash outflow from
operating activities of HK$32.4 million (2017: inflow HK$152.4
million). As at the same date, total borrowings were HK$41.4
million (2017: HK$46.5 million) and the gearing ratio (ratio of total
borrowings to shareholders’ equity) was 3.6% (2017: 4.2%).

We continue to apply stringent control over the working capital
cycle. The inventory balance as at 31 March 2018 increased from
HK$88.2 million to HK$98.9 million. Inventory turnover increased
from 26 days to 29 days compared to last year. The trade
receivables balance as at 31 March 2018 increased from HK$254.2
million to HK$289.0 million. Trade receivables turnover increased
from 70 days to 81 days compared to last year. The trade payables
balance as at 31 March 2018 increased from HK$188.7 million to
HK$193.2 million. Trade payables turnover decreased from 61 days
to 60 days.

Funding for day-to-day operational working capital and capital
expenditures are to be serviced by internal cash flow and available
banking facilities. For the year ended 31 March, 2018, the group
invested HK$32 million (2017: HK$22 million) in plant and machinery,
moulds and tools, equipment, computer systems and other
tangible assets for expansion and upgrade to our manufacturing
facilities. The Group’s capital expenditures were funded by internal
resources and bank loans. With a healthy financial position and
available banking facilities, the Group is able to provide sufficient
financial resources for our current commitments, working capital
requirements, further expansions of the Group’s business operations
and future investment opportunities, as and when required.
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Letter to Shareholders

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars,
Renminbis. Currently the Group does not implement hedging activity
to hedge against foreign currency exposure. However, we will closely
monitor foreign currency exposure and consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2018, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group employed approximately 3,440
employees (2017: 3,770). The majority of our employees work
in the PRC. The Group remunerated our employees based on
their performances, experiences and prevailing market rates while
performance bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Share
options may also be granted to employees based on individual
performance and attainment of certain set targets.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our sincere appreciation to our employees, shareholders
and business associates for their continual contribution and support
throughout the year.

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 June 2018
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, aged 60, was appointed as Chairman
of the Group on 17 March 2017 and joined the Group in 1984. She
obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science from Kingston University
London, England. She is responsible for formulating the Group’s
overall strategic planning and development, and also in charge of the
overall manufacturing operations of the Group.

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie is the daughter of Mr. Cheung Lun,
the Honorary Chairman of the Group; sister of Mr. Cheung Shu Wan,
the Managing Director, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive
Director, Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William, an Executive Director and
Mr. Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost Innovation; and
also the cousin of Mr. Cheung Pui, an Executive Director of the
Group.

Ms. Cheung is a Director of all subsidiaries of the Company. She is
also a Director of Unison Associates Limited and Allan Investment
Company Limited, controlling shareholders of the Company. As
at 31 March 2018, according to the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”), Ms. Cheung had personal interest in 600,000
shares and The Cheung Lun Family Trust (the beneficiaries of which
include Ms. Cheung and other family members other than spouse)
directly and indirectly had interest in 156,349,960 Shares. Details
of her interests are set out in the “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” of this report.

Cheung Shu Wan, aged 57, is the Managing Director of the Group
and joined the Group in 1983. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of
Science from the University of London, England. He is responsible
for the sales & marketing functions of the Group. He also assists the
Chairman in corporate strategic planning and development.

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun, the Honorary
Chairman of the Group; brother of Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie,
the Chairman, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director,
Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William, an Executive Director and Mr.
Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost Innovation; and also
the cousin of Mr. Cheung Pui, an Executive Director of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors (continueq)

Mr. Cheung is a Director of all subsidiaries of the Company. He is
also a Director of Unison Associates Limited and Allan Investment
Company Limited, controlling shareholders of the Company. As
at 31 March 2018, according to the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, Mr. Cheung had
personal interest in 49,675,335 Shares and The Cheung Lun Family
Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Cheung and other family
members other than spouse) directly and indirectly had interest
in 156,349,960 Shares. Details of his interests are set out in the
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of this report.

Cheung Lai See, Sophie, aged 55, is the Executive Director of
the Group and joined the Group in 1995. She obtained a degree in
Bachelor of Science from the University of London, England and a
master degree in Business Management from the City University,
England. She is responsible for the financial and administration
functions of the Group.

Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie is the daughter of Mr. Cheung Lun,
the Honorary Chairman of the Group; sister of Ms. Cheung Lai
Chun, Maggie, the Chairman, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, the Managing
Director, Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William, an Executive Director and
Mr. Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost Innovation; and
also the cousin of Mr. Cheung Pui, Executive Director of the Group.

Ms. Cheung is a Director of all subsidiaries of the Company. She is
also a Director of Unison Associates Limited and Allan Investment
Company Limited, controlling shareholders of the Company. As
at 31 March 2018, according to the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, Ms. Cheung had
personal interest in 1,258,000 shares and The Cheung Lun Family
Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Cheung and other family
members other than spouse) directly and indirectly had interest in
156,349,960 shares of the Company. Details of her interests are
set out in the “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of this
report.
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors (continueq)

Cheung Pui, aged 70, is the Executive Director of the Group and
joined the Group in 1963. He has over 50 years of experience in the
plastic injection moulding industry. He is responsible for all technical
aspects of plastic injection moulding activities of the Group.

Mr. Cheung Pui is the nephew of Mr. Cheung Lun, the Honorary
Chairman of the Group, he is also the cousin of Ms. Cheung Lai
Chun, Maggie, the Chairman, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, the Managing
Director, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director, Dr.
Cheung Shu Sang, William, an Executive Director of the Group and
Mr. Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost Innovation.

Mr. Cheung is a Director of Allan Electric Mfg. Limited, Allan
International Limited, Allan Plastic Mfg. Limited, Allan Toys
Manufacturing Limited, Ever Sources Investment Limited, Ngai
Shing (Far East) Plastic & Metalwares Factory Ltd., Warran Electric
Manufacturing Limited, all being subsidiaries of the Company. He
is also a director and a shareholder of Allan Investment Co. Ltd.,
a controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Listing
Rules), holding 11 percent of its entire issued share capital. As at 31
March 2018, according to the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, Mr. Cheung had personal
interest in 1,000,000 shares of the Company. Details of his interests
are set out in the “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of this
report.

Cheung Shu Sang, William, aged 53, is the Executive Director and
joined the Group in 1994. He holds a BSc degree in Computing
Science and a MSc degree in Management Science, both at
Imperial College London. He also holds a PhD degree in Automation
from the University of Bristol, and is a member of The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers. He is in charge of engineering, research
and development functions, and also management of intellectual
property/patent application.

Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun, the
Honorary Chairman of the Group; brother of Ms. Cheung Lai Chun,
Maggie, the Chairman, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, the Managing Director,
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director and Mr. Cheung
Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost Innovation; and also the
cousin of Mr. Cheung Pui, an Executive Director of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors (continueq)

Dr. Cheung is a Director of Allan Toys Manufacturing Limited and
Total Profits Limited, all being subsidiaries of the Company. He is
also a director of Allan Investment Co. Ltd., a controlling shareholder
of the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules). Dr. Cheung has
personal interest in 900,000 shares and The Cheung Lun Family
Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Dr. Cheung and other family
members other than spouse) directly and indirectly has interest in
156,349,960 shares.

Non-Executive Director

Cheung Lun, aged 90, is the founder of the Group. He had been
the Chairman since the listing of the Company in 1992 until he is
appointed as Honorary Chairman on 17 March 2017. He has more
than 50 years of management and technical experience in the
industry.

Mr. Cheung Lun is the father of Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie,
the Chairman of the Group, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, the Managing
Director, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director, Dr.
Cheung Shu Sang, William, an Executive Director and Mr. Cheung
Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost Innovation; and also the
uncle of Mr. Cheung Pui, an Executive Director of the Group.

Mr. Cheung is a Director of Unison Associates Limited and
Allan Investment Company Limited, controlling shareholders of
the Company. As at 31 March 2018, according to the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
Mr. Cheung is the settlor of The Cheung Lun Family Trust (the
beneficiaries of which include other family members other than
spouse) which directly and indirectly had interest in 156,349,960
shares. Details of his interests are set out in the “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” of this report.
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Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Chan How Chun, Rita, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in September 2004. She has extensive
experience in accounting, finance and administration. She holds a
Bachelor degree in Commerce and a master degree in Business
Administration from the University of Windsor in Canada and a PhD
degree in Management from the Hong Kong Baptist University.

Lai Ah Ming, Leon, aged 61, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in December 1995. He is a solicitor majoring
in commercial and property works.

Lo Chung Mau, aged 57, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in November 1997. Professor Lo is a surgeon and
is currently Hospital Chief Executive of the University of Hong Kong-
Shenzhen Hospital, and the Chin Lan Hong Professor and Chair of
Hepatobility and Pancreatic Surgery of the University of Hong Kong.

Senior Management

Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, aged 58, is the Director of Cost
Innovation and joined the Group in 1983. He obtained a degree in
Bachelor of Science from the University of Wales, England. He is
responsible for the purchasing and sourcing functions of the Group.

Mr. Cheung Shu Chun, Simon is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun, the
Honorary Chairman of the Group; brother of Ms. Cheung Lai Chun,
Maggie, the Chairman, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, the Managing Director,
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director and Dr. Cheung
Shu Sang, William, an Executive Director; and also the cousin of Mr.
Cheung Pui, an Executive Director of the Group.

Mr. Cheung is a director of Allan Electric Mfg. Limited, Allan
International Limited, Allan Plastic Mfg. Limited, Allan Toys
Manufacturing Limited, Artreal Manufactory Limited, Ever Sources
Investment Limited, Ngai Shing (Far East) Plastic & Metalwares
Factory Ltd., Warran Electric Manufacturing Limited, all being
subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director of Allan
Investment Co. Ltd., a controlling shareholder of the Company (as
defined in the Listing Rules). Mr. Cheung is one of the beneficiaries
of The Cheung Lun Family Trust (the beneficiaries of which include
Mr. Cheung and other family members other than spouse) which
directly and indirectly has interest in 156,349,960 shares of the
Company.
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Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management (continued)

Chung Chi Yin, aged 55, is the Director of Engineering and joined
the Group in 1990. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science in
Product Design and Technology from The Open University of Hong
Kong. He is responsible for the product development of the Group.

Kwok Ka Lee, Carrie, aged 50, is the Director of Manufacturing
and joined the Group in 1990. She obtained a degree in Bachelor
of Business (Transport and Logistics Management) from Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology. She is responsible for the
manufacturing management and control function of the Group.

Li Wai Ho, aged 54,
and joined the Group in 2012. He possesses a master degree
in management from Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a

is the Director of Sales and Marketing

bachelor degree in engineering from Manchester University in United
Kingdom. He has over 17 years of experience in various functions in
multinational corporation. He is responsible for sales and marketing
function of the Group.

Li Wing Kong, aged 58, is the Director of Quality Assurance and
joined the Group in 2013. He obtained Higher Diploma of Electrical
Engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic. He is responsible for the
Quality Assurance of the Group.

Tsang Wing Tong, Michelle, aged 51, is the Director of
Manufacturing and joined the Group in 1987. She is responsible for
the manufacturing management and control function of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management (continued)

Wong Lai Yung, aged 56, is the Company Secretary and Finance
and Account Manager of the Group and joined the Group in 2006.
She holds a master degree of Business Administration and a master
degree of Corporate Governance from The Open University of Hong
Kong. She also obtained her master degree in Economics from
Jinan University, PRC. Ms. Wong is currently a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Certified Tax Adviser
of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. She is responsible for the
Company’s secretarial duties and financial and accounting aspects
of the Group.

Wong Mei Lin, aged 55, is the Director of Administration and
Personnel and joined the Group in 2000. She obtained a Higher
Certificate in Company Secretaryship and Administration from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. She is responsible for the human
resources and administration management of the Group.
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services. The activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, including an
analysis using financial key performance indicators, the principal
risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, important events
affecting the Group and an indication of likely future development of
the Group’s business can be found in “Financial Highlights” set out
on page 4, “Letter to Shareholders” set out on Pages 5 to 9 and
“Financial Risk Management objectives and policies” (Note 27b) set
out on pages 127 to 133 of this annual report.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The success of the Group depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise customers, suppliers, employees and
shareholders.

Customers
The Group’s major customers are companies selling household
electrical appliances under well-known brand names. The Group
maintains long-term and good relationship with its customers. The
Group strives to provide excellent service and quality products to our
customers.
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Directors’ Report

Relationship with Stakeholders (continued)

Suppliers

Supply chain is a critical aspect of our operations. The Group
maintains long-term and good relationship with its suppliers. The
Group selects its suppliers based on assessment criteria including,
among others, cost, quality, experience, capability, capacity,
sustainability and ethical behavior. The Group requires all suppliers
to comply with relevant manufacturing and safety standards. The
Group has communicated to all the suppliers of the Group’s strict
compliance to anti-bribery which is also required to be observed by
all suppliers.

Employees

Employees are one of the most valuable assets of the Group. The
Group provides competitive remuneration package together with
safe and harmonious workplace. In-house and external trainings and
seminars are provided to employee for their business and personal
development. Recreational activities are organized periodically and
employees are encouraged to participate in volunteer work. The
Group has been nominated and awarded Caring Company since
2007.

Shareholders

The Group endeavors to maximize the return to its shareholders. The
Group strives to achieve profit growth and stable dividend payouts
taking into account the business development needs and financial
health of the Group.

Environmental Policies

The Group recognizes the importance of achieving environmental
sustainability. The Group is committed to comply with the relevant
environmental standards and policies related to its business
operations in the PRC and Hong Kong. The manufacturing sites in
the PRC and our head office in Hong Kong are certified with the
ISO 14001:2004 standard for environmental management system.
The Group incorporates the Reduce, Reuse and Recycle principle
and implements environmental-friendly measures in operations and
workplaces to achieve efficient use of resources, waste reduction
and energy saving.
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Directors’ Report

Environmental Policies (continuea)

In accordance with Rule 13.91 and the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules, the Company’s Environmental, Social and Governance
Report will be available on our website within three months from the
publication of this annual report.

Compliance with laws and regulations

For the year ended 31 March 2018, there was no material breach of
or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group that has a significant impact on the business and operations
of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

During the year, none of the Directors was interested in any business
which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 and
the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 52.

An interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share amounting to
HK$6,709,000 in aggregate was paid to the ordinary shareholders
during the year. The directors now recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HKB6.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the
current year to the ordinary shareholders on the register of members
on 24 August 2018, amounting to HK$20,126,000 in aggregate.
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Directors’ Report

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentage of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s
largest suppliers and customers are as follows:

EEERE

TEFEFRHEER

AEBESAREALAEFPZBEENHE
BFTE AT

Purchases EEHE
— the largest supplier —mAHER 8%
— five largest suppliers combined —REREEEAE 22%
Sales iH & 2R
— the largest customer —mABEE 31%
— five largest customers combined — A REEE: 92%

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has
an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group

for the last five financial years is set out on page 148 of the annual
report.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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Directors’ Report

Distributable Reserves of the Company

In addition to the retained profits, under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@ itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders as at 31 March 2018 comprised the
retained profit of HK$230,284,000 (2017: HK$155,018,000).

Investment Properties

As at 31 March 2018, principal properties held for investment
purposes are as follows:

Address:

- 9th Floor, Capital Centre, No. 151 Gloucester Road, Hong
Kong

- Car Parking Space No. 303 on 3rd Floor, Capital Centre, No.
151 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong

- Car Parking Space No. 304 on 3rd Floor, Capital Centre, No.
151 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong

Lot No.:

- The Remaining Portion of Section A of the Inland Lot No. 2755
- The Remaining Portion of Inland Lot No. 2755

Existing Use: Office rental

Lease Term: Long term

Details of the movement in investment properties of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Directors’ Report

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$32 million on the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment principally to expand
and upgrade its manufacturing facilities. Details of these and other
movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors and Directors’ Service
Contracts

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan (Managing Director)
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie

Mr. Cheung Pui

Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Cheung Lun (Honorary Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon

Professor Lo Chung Mau

According to bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Cheung
Lun and Professor Lo Chung Mau shall retire by rotation at the
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.
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Directors’ Report

Directors and Directors’ Service
Contracts (continuea)

The term of office of each director (except for the Chairman of the
Board and/or the Managing Director) is the period up to his/her
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

None of the directors of the Company proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has any service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

At 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives and their associates in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQ”), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, were as follows:
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Name

i3]
Mr. Cheung Lun
KL E

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan
RER LA

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
REY R T

Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie
REHLL

Mr. Cheung Pui
RIERE

Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William
REEEL

Capacity

af

Founder of discretionary trust

ERETZRIA

Beneficial Owner
BREAA
Beneficiary of trust
BEREA

Beneficial Owner
ERBEBA
Beneficiary of trust
EREZEA

Beneficial Owner
EREAA
Beneficiary of trust
FREREA

Beneficial Owner
ExBEEA

Beneficial Owner
ERBAA
Beneficiary of trust
BEXHEA
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures
(Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)
Note:

The references to 156,349,960 shares relate to the same block of shares
in the Company, of which 134,821,960 shares are held by Allan Investment
Co. Limited (“AICL"), 14,958,000 shares are held by Commence Investment
Limited (“CIL”) and 6,570,000 shares are held by Unison Associates Limited
(“UAL”"). AICL and CIL are owned as to 89.0% and 100% respectively
by UAL. Mr. Cheung Lun is the settlor of The Cheung Lun Family Trust
(“Trust”). Credit Suisse Trust Limited as trustee of the Trust holds 100% of
the shareholding of UAL and the discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust are,
among others, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, Ms.
Cheung Lai See, Sophie and Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executives,
nor their associates, of the Company had, as at 31 March 2018,
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors’ Report

Share Option Scheme

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

No options have been granted since the adoption of the scheme.

Arrangement to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than the share option scheme set out in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Update on Directors’ Information
Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

There is no changes in the Directors’ information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report

Appointment of Independent Non-
Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangement and Contracts of
Significance

Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Conan”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement with
Fair Pacific Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AICL, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which Fair Pacific Limited
granted to Conan a tenancy in respect of certain land in Lilin,
Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone, Huizhou City,
Guangdong, the PRC at a monthly rent of HK$82,000. The tenancy
agreement was for a term of five years commenced from 1 April
2013. The total amount of rent paid for the year by the Group in
respect of this agreement was HK$984,000.

Allan Plastics Mfg., Limited (“APML”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with Income Village
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AICL, pursuant to which
Income Village Limited granted to APML a tenancy in respect of
certain premises in Lilin, Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial Development
Zone, Huizhou City, Guangdong, the PRC at a monthly rent of
HK$17,000. The tenancy agreement was for a term of three years
commenced from 1 April 2017. The total amount of rent paid for the
year by the Group in respect of this agreement was HK$204,000.

Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Karan”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with
AICL, pursuant to which AICL granted to Karan a tenancy in respect
of certain premises in Lilin, Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial Development
Zone, Huizhou City, Guangdong, the PRC at a monthly rent of
HK$75,000. The tenancy agreement was a term of three years
commenced from 1 April 2017. The total amount of rent paid for the
year by the Group in respect of this agreement was HK$900,000.
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangement and Contracts of
Significance (continuea)

The above transactions were approved by the independent non-
executive directors and were conducted on normal commercial
terms in the ordinary course of business of the Group and in
accordance with the terms of the agreement governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Other than disclosed above, no transactions, arrangement and
contracts of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director or a connected entity of a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Emolument Policy

Salary package for employees are structured by reference to
market conditions, staff’'s experience and individual performance.
Other benefits offered by the Group included medical insurance,
mandatory provident fund scheme, training subsidies, share option
scheme and discretionary bonus.

The emoluments of the directors and senior management are
recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company
and decided by the Board, with reference to the market rates,
commitment, contribution and their duties, and responsibilities with
the Group. Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in details in
Note 7 to the financial statements.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to the directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are
set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2018, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain directors and chief executive, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests and long/short positions in
the issued share capital of the Company.
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Directors’ Report

Substantial Shareholders (continueq)

Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of
the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity
Y g7
Credit Suisse Trust Limited Trustee
BRA
UAL Held by controlled corporation

gl 2 AREH
Beneficial Owner
ExBEAA

AICL Beneficial Owner
DRiE ExBEAA

Webb, David Michael Beneficial Owner
EREAA
Held by controlled corporation

Pzl RAHA

Preferable Situation Assets Limited Beneficial Owner
ExBEAA
Note:

The reference to 26,007,000 shares above are held by Preferable Situation
Assets Limited, a company 100% controlled by Mr. Webb, David Michael.

FERE @

FERRAXRBDRGDZHR
Approximate
Number of % of
ordinary shares shareholding

hREZ
EERK O BHEs

156,349,960 46.61%
149,779,960 44.65%
6,570,000 1.96%
134,821,960 40.19%
10,777,000 3.21%
26,007,000 7.75%
(Note)
(Htat)
26,007,000 7.75%
(Note)
(Htst)

7t BT 3 K #926,007,0000% 1% 15 B3 Webb, David
Michaelst 4 2 # 4% 4| Z Preferable Situation
Assets LimitediF 4 ©
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Directors’ Report

Substantial Shareholders (continueq)

Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of
the Company (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the Company
has not been notified by any persons (other than directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately HK$83,000.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices of the Company is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 32 to 43.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws/articles of association, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2018.
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Directors’ Report

Auditor

¥ BB

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to REERRBAFAL L #gRE—IERE
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the ROBEZIEY BERFLFTAIITAR

Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 June 2018
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital
to the success of the Group and the sustained development of the
Group. The Company aims at complying with, where appropriate, all
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”).

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions as set out in the CG Code. The
Company has, throughout the year ended 31 March 2018, applied
and complied with most of the code provisions save for certain
deviations from the code provisions in respect of code provisions
A41, Ad.2, A51, A6.7 and E.1.2, details of which are explained
below.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made
specific enquiry to all directors regarding any non-compliance with
the Model Code during the year under review and they have all
confirmed that they had fully complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises of five Executive Directors, being Ms. Cheung
Lai Chun, Maggie (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Shu Wan (Managing
Director), Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, Mr. Cheung Pui and Dr.
Cheung Shu Sang, William; one Non-Executive Director, being Mr.
Cheung Lun (Honorary Chairman); three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, being Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita, Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon
and Professor Lo Chung Mau. Biographical details, which include
relationships among members of the Board, are provided in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of this Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors (continueq)

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

° Formulating the Group’s long term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof

° Approval of interim and year end dividend

° Reviewing and approving the annual and interim reports
° Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance

° Monitoring the performance of the management

° Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and assets
disposal

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategies
that have been approved.

The Board meets regularly at least four times a year and additional
meetings or telephone conferences are convened as and when the
Board considers necessary. During the year, four board meetings
were held. Details of the Directors’ attendance record in the year are
as follows:

Attendance/

Executive Directors No. of meeting

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie 4/4
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan 4/4
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie 4/4
Mr. Cheung Pui 4/4
Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William 4/4

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Cheung Lun 4/4

EES ()

$a,f§£$2fﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁ$ﬁ YT -EEEH

BEREREERHEEACESHERZE
iﬁ*ﬁﬁ’*l%ﬁ%ZE EBRZR TS B
RAIZEREBAE -—RNE EFSrB
BERIE:

o BITAREEREY R ERAT
gt

. BBTHRERRE

o BERBERFRPPRERS

s MRRHEEERNETHEMATH

4

e EREEENRA

o R RMEEFAERZEBEREEHL
&=
ESEECRETEBNTCEMIEANRE-

ErerTgETeR T FHxLBTAR
EX03 HESERRAFTEBR TGS
TEIMEZTERREFZEZ RNFR
BT THREFE MAREFRFARAZH
JE RO 8 -

HE

HITES R

RER L 4/4

REEB A 4/4

REH L 4/4

REFSAE 4/4

R AT L 4/4
FHITES

RimLE 4/4

Annual Report 2017/2018 —E—tEZ -8 — \FFRK

33



Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors (continueq)

Attendance/

Independent Non-Executive Directors No. of meeting

Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita 4/4
Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon 4/4
Professor Lo Chung Mau 4/4

The Company has complied with the Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three Independent Non-Executive Directors and one of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent
Non-Executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged for directors and officers liability
insurance to indemnity its directors against liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Board considered that the duties of the Managing Director, Mr.
Cheung Shu Wan (“MD”) were no different from that required of a
chief executive stipulated under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code. The management would regard that the term MD will have the
same meaning as the chief executive of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

Chairman and Chief Executive (continveq)

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, the Chairman of the Board, is an
Executive Director who is responsible for the leadership and effective
running of the Board, and ensuring that all significant and key issues
are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board timely and
constructively.

The MD of the Board is delegated with the authority and
responsibility to run the Group’s business and day-to-day operation,
and implement the Group’s strategy with respect to the achievement
of its business objectives with the assistance of the executive
directors and senior management.

Appointment and Re-election of
Directors

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-Executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Currently, neither the Non-Executive Director nor three Independent
Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific
term. This constitutes a deviation from the CG Code. In accordance
with the provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company, any director
appointed by the Board during the year shall retire and submit
themselves for re-election at the first general meeting immediately
following his/her appointment. Further, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not exceeding one-third, shall retire from office. The directors
to retire by rotation shall be those who have been longest in office
since their last re-election or appointment. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the Company’s corporate governance practices are similar to those
in the CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Report

Appointment and Re-election of
Directors (continued)

Code provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after their appointment, and every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the chairman and/or the
managing director is not subject to retirement by rotation or taken
into account in determining the number of directors to retire. This
constitutes a deviation from the CG Code. As continuation is a key
factor to the successful implementation of any long term business
plans, the Board believes that, the present arrangement is most
beneficial to the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

Directors’ Training

All Directors participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
All directors participate in appropriate continuous professional
development activities by ways of attending training or reading
material relevant to the Company’s business or to the directors’
duties and responsibilities. During the year ended 31 March 2018,
the Company has provided an update on the latest development and
changes of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and regulations
relating to directors’ duties and responsibilities to each of Ms.
Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai
See, Sophie, Mr. Cheung Pui, Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William, Mr.
Cheung Lun, Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita, Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon and
Professor Lo Chung Mau to keep themselves update on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director. The Company has
received the records of training from all directors.

36 Allan International Holdings Limited T2 @ Bl EE B R A 7

BECEEIRER )

SRR £ A4 160 T PTG FIR fl R i ==
RMEZTCEFERERTR AR
RREERZBRER BRESF (BRETE
THEZEIZEF ) EHESE 248=

F—IRe

BREBEARRZARMA ARRZ2ERER
FEFRKENEAGESE RETES
RIEABKIMBAFEERN  BRELEST
AIE PR = - BT E R R II R ITEM &
EEBHENEIERNR E=29HE RE
MZHFERARBNERRNERBN R
REBEH-

251

FIEEEH2MSATXEE EENRS
B REF B A N BB o L R T R RER NS A
BRNPABBMBESTSELARER - 28
EFFB2MFI LB E RN R ER K
EERGLRETHBERN BOELFESR
¥ER-BE_ZT-N\F=ZA=+—HB1
FE-ARADHIAKRED XL RKEEE
B RBHTR LT REBSAE - REAEFEL R
Rt REFEFL REPALEERERKX
BEBNUREHAEBLTANEHERK
28 FRESTRBEBENEREE R
AIMOEREINER URREEEZREGH
EHRREENAG B ETNRHE
Ao ARBEWBMBEEZNFINLE -



Corporate Governance Report

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and comprises
three Board members, all of whom are independent non-executive
directors. The Audit Committee has adopted the same terms of
reference, which describe the authority and duties of the Committee,
as quoted under code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee will meet at least twice each year. During the
year, the Audit Committee met twice considering the annual results
of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 and the
interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30 September
2017, assessing any changes in accounting policies and practices,
major judgmental areas and compliance with applicable legal and
accounting requirements and standards, discussing with the auditor
of the Company on the risk management and internal control
systems.

Details of Committee members and their attendance records are
listed as below:

Attendance/

Committee member No. of meeting

Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon 2/2
Professor Lo Chung Mau 2/2

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2012 with written
terms of reference as stated in Code B.1.2 of the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three members, majority of
which are Independent Non-Executive Directors. Mr. Lai Ah Ming,
Leon, being an Independent Non-Executive Director, acts as the
chairman. Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita, an Independent Non-Executive
Director and Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director, are
the Committee Members.
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Remuneration Committee (continueq)

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies
and overseeing the remuneration packages of all directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendation to the Board for the determination of the
remuneration packages of all executive directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board for the directors’ fee of non-
executive directors. It takes into account factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies with similar size and trade,
education background and qualification of each director and senior
management, time commitment and responsibilities of directors and
senior management.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held one meeting.
Attendance of each individual member was as follows:

Attendance/

Committee member No. of meeting

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon (Chairman) 1/1
Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita 1/1
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie 1/1

Details on the emolument payable to the directors and the
Company’s share option scheme are disclosed in Notes 7 and 28 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report

Nomination of Directors

Code provision A.5.1 stipulates that the Company should establish
a nomination committee. Currently, the Company does not
have a nomination committee. The Board will identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members when necessary. The
Board will give due consideration to the suitability of a candidate
for directorship after taking into account of his/her experience,
qualification and other relevant factors. All candidates must also
meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing
Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an independent non-
executive director should also meet the independence criteria set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management; review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to employees
and directors; and review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Company Secretary

Ms. Wong Lai Yung joined the Company since 2006 and was
appointed as the Company Secretary in 2012. Ms. Wong is
responsible to update and provide advice to the Board in relation
to directors’ obligations under the Listing Rules, applicable laws
and regulations, and corporate governance matters. Ms. Wong
has provided her training records to the Company indicating her
compliance with the training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. Ms. Wong’s biographical details are provided in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of this Annual Report.

Annual Report 2017/2018 —ZE—tF&Z_F— \FFIH{K 39

ot

EZREA

SRR AL AGRHE - ARERILIERE
Eg-RE ARAUERLZES EF
EENEFTERYEREZAERALH
TEZENE -EFSRERZTRBEEAZ
K BRNEMEBRRAREEEEE
BREEZRRE -MEREATBANE
M AR A E3.08 3. 00MG A8 2152 < R
ERBUYFNTEEZHREAMEAENA L
AR RIS AR &L 2 B R -

AN A s 3/ Bh &b
1F E/DH&EE

EEgRENEMERARRNEEERK
RRER BOILEREENSEEEAER
MBI R EERER R REEARQA
EETEARLEERETENBRRER
WA REREENEEMNIRTER UL
AARAETEETRNERARELEE
AME AR -

DNEHWE

BEARLEIR -_ZERNEMARRF AR
TE-CFREZAERRFNME-EXLTAEE
RTT MR IR £ AR B S B DA RER b
EEREERNEFERAER -FERLLER
ARABIREIFIIGCEARE ET EHRRE
B29FZIBIIME - BEREZEBEFITEH
RAFRIEENGRERAE] —EHRA-



Corporate Governance Report

Constitutional Documents

During the year, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the
Financial Statement

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility for (i)
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and (i) selecting suitable
accounting policies and applying the selected accounting policies
consistently with the support of reasonable and prudent judgement
and estimates.

A statement by the independent auditor about their reporting
responsibilities is set out on pages 44 to 49 of this Annual Report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration payable to the
Company’s independent auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set
out as follows:

Services rendered Fees payable

HK$ 000

Audit services 2,107
Non-audit services

Review of interim results 304

Taxation services 391

Audit of occupational retirement scheme 25
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Corporate Governance Report

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to monitor the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted an annual
review of both design and implementation effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, covering
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any
material issues to the Board.

In light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the
Group, the Directors are of the view that it would be more cost
effective to appoint external independent professionals to perform
internal audit function for the Group in order to meet its needs. The
Group does not have an internal audit department and will continue
to review the need for an internal audit function.

During the year, the Group appointed KLC Transactions Limited
(“KLC”) as an external independent professional to:

° assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of interviews; and

° independently perform internal control reviews and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.
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Corporate Governance Report

Risk Management and Internal Controls
(Continued)

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures as
recommended by KLC to enhance the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of the Group were
adopted by the Board. Based on the findings and recommendations
of KLC as well as the comments of the Audit Committee, the Board
considered the internal control and risk management systems
effective and adequate.

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to comply
with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA of the
SFO. The internal control mechanism includes information flow
and reporting processes, confidentiality arrangements, disclosure
procedures, and staff training arrangements, etc.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls and
risk management and further enhance the Group’s internal control
and risk management systems as appropriate.

Shareholders’ Rights

On the requisition of shareholders of the Company holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company, the Board
may convene a special general meeting to address specific issues
of the Company within 21 days from the date of deposit of written
notice to the registered office of the Company. The requisition must
state the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionist(s).

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders or not less than 100 shareholders may
propose any resolution at the annual general meeting and circulate
to other shareholders written statement with respect to the matter to
be dealt with at the annual general meeting.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
office address at 12/F, Zung Fu Industrial Building, 1067 King'’s
Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company regards its Annual General Meeting as an opportunity
for direct communication between the Board and its shareholders.
All Directors and external auditor make an effort to attend the Annual
General Meeting to address shareholders’ queries. The Company
also responds to requests for information and queries from the
shareholders and investors and welcomes the views of shareholders
on matter affecting the Group and encourages them to attend
shareholders’ meeting to communicate any concerns they might
have with the Board.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors shall attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders.

Certain independent non-executive directors and non-executive
director did not attend the Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 15 August 2017 due to other business engagements.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the audit
committee should attend the annual general meeting. The Chairman
of the Audit Committee had not attended the Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on 15 August 2017. The Chairman
will endeavour to attend all future annual general meetings of the
Company unless unexpected or special circumstances prevent her
from doing so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ALLAN INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Allan
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 50 to 147,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matters

B ZHERE

AR ERTE IR

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional ARETFEERBEMANEEHE  RAR
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated HAMGEEWBRENEARAEZENS
financial statements of the current period. These matters were HoBEEREABMEBTBRELFAEVBR

=

addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial AEHAERBETRIEN - BRMTEHE
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we LETRRMEEFNER -

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

ARETER

Valuation of investment properties

REYFRI 14 E

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a
key audit matter due to the significant assumptions and
judgements involved in determining their fair value.
BPERAREDENEEFEABRNEAFTE EHR
FEORTEH A FEMES S K EARBRR M E -

The Group’s investment properties amounted to
HK$281,000,000 as at 31 March 2018 and a gain
from changes in fair value of investment properties of
HK$30,200,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended.
RZZE-—NF=ZA=+—HB SEREMES HAR2E
8,100& BT RIREMHE M A T EEE 2 & FFH3,020
EBTERAFREFaER REME KRR T ER -

As disclosed in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, all of the Group’s investment properties
were stated at fair value based on a valuation performed
by a firm of independent qualified professional
surveyors (“Surveyors”). The fair value of the Group’s
investment properties was determined by adopting the
direct comparison method. The valuation is sensitive
to the market unit rate of comparable properties and
adjustment factors for size, view and floor level of
property and timing of the comparable transactions.

REEMBREENTUPIRE SEMAREDEDN

ATERRE-—RAANBYEZSERMEERM CAl2
fi) ME-SEREMENATERKRABEELRAE

EE - MERA RN TS B BRERK  MENRT
S8 BERAUNRGEEERBARNEE-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMWESF UMY ERENASHETER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

B AR ERENENEFEHE:

e FEvaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Surveyors;

o FMEBUAERMEMNTERN MEMTRIL-

e (Obtaining an understanding from the Surveyors about
the valuation technique, the performance of the market,
significant assumptions adopted and key inputs used in
the valuations; and

o WRIZRIAEEMANEERN THRE KA
BARBMEEREANOBRE AR, &

e Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs used
by the Surveyors in the valuation model, including the
market unit rate of individual unit and adjustment factors
for size, view and floor level of property and timing of
comparable transactions against current market data
and entity specific information on a sample basis.

o EAEMANEEANERNEREABBENSE
M BEENELNTSELERNMENRT S8
MEE URAIEXZHEEEENTISBENERA
BESNAREER UKRRER-
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report B Z AR S

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the BB B B 5T 4R & MRS R R A
Audit of the Consolidated Financial EWET e
Statements (continueq)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continueq)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Sunnie Sy.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 June 2018
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50

Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Gain from changes in fair value of
investment properties

Finance costs on bank loans

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

Other comprehensive income
(expense):

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on

translation of foreign operations
Net fair value gain on
available-for-sale investments
Cumulative loss reclassified to
profit or loss on redemption of
available-for-sale investments

Other comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to owners
of the Company

Earnings per share
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2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt FET FET
5 1,305,166 1,325,082
(1,176,304) (1,133,545)
128,862 191,537
6 29,512 28,942
8 735 (1,826)
(24,574) (24,708)
(108,670) (117,849)
14 30,200 8,800
(612) (676)
55,453 84,225
10 (8,673) (11,278)
11 46,780 72,947
14,398 (10,055)
257 514
317 30
14,972 9,511)
61,752 63,436

13
HK13.9 centsi&fli  HK21.7 cents &l




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position e BT ARR 3R

At 31 March 2018 RIE— AT =F=N .
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties KREME 14 281,000 250,800
Property, plant and equipment W% WE K& 15 179,485 179,602
Prepaid lease payments FERNMEEKIE 16 24,287 22,994
Club debentures eRES 17 13,176 13,176
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 18 61,417 17,010
Financial assets designated at fair value BBERR A FEFTEZ
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) MBEE - 1,920
Deferred tax assets BERERIEEE 24 552 =
Deposits paid for acquisition of ENBEEYME - HEKX
property, plant and equipment BRI & 481 1,879
560,398 487,381
Current assets MENE E
Inventories rE 19 98,854 88,210
Trade receivables and bills receivable ~ FEWE 5 R R EIREE 20 288,967 254,189
Other receivables H th & U AR X 20 35,158 22,157
Mould deposits paid ENEREAERT® 4,115 14,295
Prepaid lease payments BN EERE 16 678 677
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 18 - 8,548
Tax recoverable JER TR 2,276 1,441
Short-term deposits ySRREF N 21 127,403 213,362
Bank balances and cash RITEEF MRS 21 469,572 517,924
1,027,023 1,120,803
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade payables R E 5 R 22 193,194 188,658
Other payables and accruals b BN BR B R JE S R AN 127,594 122,885
Deferred income EFEWA 9 17,649 19,252
Mould deposits received EWERET® 25,560 41,213
Tax liabilities MIERE 36,244 40,734
Secured bank loan BEMIRITE 23 5,124 5,124
405,365 417,866
Net current assets mENEEFE 621,658 702,937

Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARGE 1,182,056 1,190,318
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At 31 March 2018

Non-current liabilities FERBAG
Deferred tax liabilities BEBHIBAE
Deferred income PEFE U A
Secured bank loan BEMFEITER

Net assets BEFE

Capital and reserves BEARRFEE
Share capital [N
Reserves e

The consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 147 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
June 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHEUNG LAI CHUN, MAGGIE
REYD
Director

BF
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2018 2017

—E2-N\F —T—tF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt FET FET
24 7,757 13,069
9 - 17,649
23 36,285 41,409
44,042 72,127

1,138,014 1,118,191

25 33,543 33,543
1,104,471 1,084,648

1,138,014 1,118,191

BN ESOE147TEZ AT BEREEE RN
T-NFRAA-tN\BEEEed£RF
BT YA THIEERRER:

CHEUNG LAI SEE, SOPHIE
REHT
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2018

At 1 April 2016

Profit for the year

Exchange differences arising on translation

of foreign operations
Net fair value gain on available-for-sale investments
Cumulative loss reclassified to

profit or loss on redemption of
available-for-sale investments

Other comprehensive income (expense)
for the year

Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year

Dividends recognised as distribution (Note 12)

At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017

Profit for the year

Exchange differences arising on translation

of foreign operations
Net fair value gain on available-for-sale investments
Cumulative loss reclassified to

profit or loss on redemption of
available-for-sale investments

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividends recognised as distribution (Note 12)

At 31 March 2018
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BRIEAEZRS (FiEE12)

RZE-NE=R=t-H
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ZRA=t-HEk
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Capital  Investment

Share Share  redemption  revaluation  Translation Retained

capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RAEE RE

S RAEE 53] EftRfE EXRE REER ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT FET FAT FAET FET
33,543 109,884 793 (487) 27,065 1,003,036 1,173,834
- - - - - 72,947 72,947
- - - - (10,055) - (10,055)
- - - 514 - - 514
- - - 30 - - 30
- - - 544 (10,055) - (9,511)
- - - 544 (10,055) 72,947 63,436
- - - - - (119,079) (119,079
33,543 109,884 793 57 17,010 956,904 1,118,191
- - - - - 46,780 46,780
- - - - 14,398 - 14,398
- - - 257 - - 257
- - - 317 - - 317
- - - 574 14,398 - 14,972
- - - 574 14,398 46,780 61,752
- - - - - (41,929) (41,929
33,543 109,884 793 631 31,408 961,755 1,138,014
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows MERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE_T— \E=A=t1+—HItEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tfF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RE T
Profit before tax BR 5% A 4 A 55,453 84,225
Adjustments for: P EE
Release of prepaid lease payments TE & 5K I8 2 [0 £ 678 677
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% - BME N EHE 2T E 47,286 59,641
Gain from changes in fair value of NI EME N TFEZLR
investment properties EE &R (30,200) (8,800)
Finance costs on bank loans IRITER AR 612 676
Interest income A2 WA (3,161) (3,010)
Cumulative loss reclassified to profit or LAt HEREN
loss on redemption of available-for-sale EitEEESN AR
investments BmiR 317 30
Net gain on financial assets BRBREATESE
designated at FVTPL WEEERNFE (58) (315)
Amortisation of deferred income EIEW A 2 B 5H (19,252) (19,252)
Loss on disposal of a club debenture HE—REmESMEELEZ
B8 - 181
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEMHE HEMZREZ
plant and equipment &8 (&H) 37 (37)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment WER % B E K&t 9 428
Operating cash flows before movements BEEARNEEAE 2
in working capital KERERE 51,721 114,444
Increase in inventories FE# (1,817) (13,621)
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables and EWE ZBER R
bills receivable W RE (3 ) w4 (34,417) 46,540
(Increase) decrease in other receivables H b i YT BR 3R (3800 )5 (10,495) 7,761
Decrease (increase) in mould deposits paid EfERERESRED (3Em) 10,180 (1,283)
Decrease in trade payables B2 SRR (8,352) (12,059)
Decrease in other payables and accruals 4t B A BR S R B AN R AR (3,753) (10,357)
(Decrease) increase in mould deposits received = HWHE B4 (R4 ) 1N (15,653) 14,294
Cash (used in) generated from operations KB (FIRE)MELEZRS (12,586) 145,719
Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid) refund BEAENEH (BER)ERK (7,429) 10,953
The People’s Republic of China BT E AR A
(the “PRC”) Enterprise Income Tax paid (TR B EFTS/R (5,898) (4,290)
PRC withholding tax paid B BEENH (6,535) =
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING RETE () MELEZ
ACTIVITIES REFHE (32,448) 152,382
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2018

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Withdrawal of short-term deposits
Proceeds on redemption of available-for-sale
investments
Interest received
Proceeds on redemption of financial assets
designated at FVTPL
Proceeds on disposal of a club debenture
Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Placement of short-term deposits
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of available-for-sale investments
Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid

New bank loan raised
Repayment of bank loans
Interest paid

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR, represented by
bank balances and cash

BE—T—

REED
REVEHER
BOrRAIHEHERE
FT{5 /18
2 AE
BOrAEEBERRATE
AECHMBEE A
HE—EGRESENRIEA
HEME  BE MR E
FTi8 k18
£ Ny SRR
BEME BFEAH&RE
BEAHEERE
ENBEYME BHEK
BdHEa
RETEEERSTFHE
7l & E B
EfTARE
BEEEHBEITER
EEBITER
EfAE
RMETBHRAEREFE

RERBEEE
OB ) 18 0% 88

REDAZRERAETEE

SNEEXBH I RHE

REZEZRERASEE

HERRTEFERE

0y =| iﬁ%/)lb;%
NEFE=ZA=+—HILEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
290,083 435,298
15,769 8,981
3,161 3,010
1,978 1,890
- 509
249 116
(204,124) (342,928)
(29,663) (21,578)
(51,371) (14,456)
(481) (1,879)
25,601 68,963
(41,929) (119,079)
- 17,050
(5,124) (27,722)
(612) (676)
(47,665) (130,427)
(54,512) 90,918
517,924 424,879
6,160 2,127
469,572 517,924
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1.

General

Allan International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its
immediate holding company is Allan Investment Company
Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong; and
its ultimate holding company is Credit Suisse Trust Limited,
who is a trustee of The Cheung Lun Family Trust (“Trust”), the
discretionary beneficiaries of which are, among other family
members, the directors of the Company, Mr. Cheung Shu
Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, Ms. Cheung Lai See,
Sophie and Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, Wiliam. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section of
the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services to its subsidiaries.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are manufacturing and
trading of household electrical appliances.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time in the current
year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2014 - 2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the
amendments also require disclosures on changes in financial
assets if cash flows from those financial assets were, or future
cash flows will be, included in cash flows from financing
activities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continuea)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative (Continued)

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;
(iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in Note 29. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart from
the additional disclosure in Note 29, the application of these
amendments has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs and interpretations that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
the related Amendments’

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

HK(FRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions'

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement?
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle!

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property"

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 - 2017
Cycle?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in issue

but not yet effective (Continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

Except for the new and revised HKFRSs and interpretations
mentioned below, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of all other new and revised HKFRSs and
interpretations will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group
are:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI”). All
other financial assets are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 March 2018, the directors of
the Company anticipate the following potential impact on initial
application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement

° Debt instruments classified as loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost as disclosed in Note 27a:
these are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding. Accordingly, these financial assets will
continue to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
upon the application of HKFRS 9;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in issue

but not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Listed debt instruments classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at fair value as disclosed in Note 18:
these are held within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the listed debt instruments in the open market,
and the contractual terms give rise to cash flows on
specified dates that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding. Accordingly, the
listed debt instruments will continue to be subsequently
measured at FVTOCI upon the application of HKFRS
9, and the fair value gains or losses accumulated in
the investments revaluation reserve will continue to be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss when the listed
debentures are derecognised or reclassified;

Investment funds classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at fair value as disclosed in Note 18,
which are not held for short term trading purpose, will
be subsequently measured at fair value through profit
or loss upon the application of HKFRS 9. Accordingly,
the investment funds will continue to be subsequently
measured at fair value upon the application of HKFRS 9,
and the fair value changes will be recognised to profit or
loss; and

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will
continue to be measured on the same bases as are
currently measured under HKAS 39.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised costs and other items that subject to the impairment
provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company,
if the expected credit loss model were to be applied by the
Group, the application of the expected credit loss model would
not have a material impact on the financial assets measured
at amortised cost as at 1 April 2018 upon the application of
HKFRS 9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Conitracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continueqd)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15
in relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of HKFRS 15 in the future will have a material
impact on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in
the respective reporting periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to
be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the
lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as
well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in
relation to leasehold lands for owned use while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing cash flows by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset
for finance lease arrangement and prepaid lease payments for
leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The application
of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification of
these assets depending on whether the Group presents right-
of-use assets separately or within the same line item at which
the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if
they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either
as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$3,398,000 as disclosed
in Note 31. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS
16. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of
all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term
leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits received of HK$2,032,000 as rights and obligations
under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits
are not payments relating to the right to use the underlying
assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits
may be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments
are considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits received would be considered as
advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies 3. FEFTHXR @

(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of the reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies 3. FEFTHXR @

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

72  Allan International Holdings Limited T2 fa Bl EEE R A 7

RERBEEE (&)

WA FERBRABR Lt = RZ
2RE AN LHBAEE) AEES
ENHHEESREREBREREG
1o

ER=NCIA S =N i N SN EE TG
BRR RS WRAEER
EMB AR ZIEFIERK L BEBM
5 FAMKER L ERB AR ZEA
KX Ty B AR BEESZEHI#E 2 B
AAmGBEaEMEEKER BEE
AEENBEHNEENBRARERR
1Ee

LB - EHHE AR HRESE
AR SRS BHEERARE
ZEEHREBC

ERSEARMAEEEKRARE #amE W
A FAXEBReRERAEEKE AR
ZHENRGNEERBRBEBEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time apportionment basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

When a sale and leaseback transaction results in an operating
lease, and the sale price is above fair value, the excess over
fair value shall be deferred and amortised over the period for
which the asset is expected to be used.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically,
the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element at
initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold
land and building elements, the entire property is generally
classified as if the leasehold land is under finance lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as described below)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than properties under construction less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model. Gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment properties are

included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible asset with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on tangible and intangible assets).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

mEMBRESME

(2T \F=ZA=t—HILFE

FTESTEE 2

REWE (#E)
BREMERHESI R EBAKALILERE
AR & B & B R EER =
Z R\ HERR o 4R L RERR YD R PTEE £ EY
EfRANMERENA (FRHERSK
HFREZEERAELEZRAE)R
RIFHERREAZBESD -

BLEE
BYBEEREERAPRIBLEE
BRRASBER RFHRER R (RA
WEENMEVEERERBEZ N
®) e

BRVEENHEXERHEARHE
B BB 4 B 1R AR M 28 By A% LETERR o IO
RIPFEREBILEEMEL 2 B E
B DREERFIIREE  BZEE
ERAMEZHZEZR1E YNERE
ETBERRENED R -

BEREEREREEZRE
AEBRBREREREEHNEBLE
ERETLEENEREE RHAHLES
ERRB LIRS EERZEMBERS
Be Wb REMERESR Bt EEN
A] B4 & BE DA RE E R B R ROAZE (10
B)-

81



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets (Continued)
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets (Continued)
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-
in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when it is
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets
and is included in the “other gains and losses” line item. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in Note 27c.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, or loans and receivables.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified
as AFS financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS
debt instruments relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method, and changes in foreign exchange
rates, if applicable are recognised in profit or loss. Dividend on
AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established. Other
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investment revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade
receivables and bills receivable, other receivables, short-
term deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment loss of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the credit period of 90 days, as well as
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and bills receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable and a bill receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other payables
and secured bank loan) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (continueq)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts
of investment properties measured using the fair value model
are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. The Group
has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of investment properties as the Group is not subject to
any income taxes on the fair value changes of the investment
properties on disposal.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (continueq)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Valuation of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment
properties are stated at fair value of HK$281,000,000 (2017:
HK$250,800,000) based on the valuation performed by a firm
of independent qualified professional surveyors.

In determining the fair value, surveyors have used the direct
comparison method which involves estimates the market unit
rate of comparable properties and adjustment factors for size,
view and floor level of properties and timing of the comparable
transactions.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
method of valuations are reflective of the current market
conditions. Note 14 provides detailed information about the
valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of investment properties.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent if it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group looks for
other appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (continueq)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs
that are not based on observable market data to estimate
the fair value of certain types of financial instruments.
Notes 14 and 27c provide detailed information about the
valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets and liabilities.

Revenue and Segment Information

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and
trading of household electrical appliance. Revenue of the
Group are sales of household electrical appliance.

Information reported to the Company’s executive directors (the
chief operating decision maker) for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on geographical regions.

The Group is currently organised into four operating divisions
— Europe sales, Asia sales, America sales and other regions
sales. The information reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of performance is based on these operating
divisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Revenue and Segment Information

(Continued)

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

for each of the reportable and operating segments.

Year ended 31 March 2018

Segment revenue (Note a)

Segment profit

Other gains and losses (except net
foreign exchange gain)

Depreciation (except moulds)

Gain from changes in fair value of
investment properties

Finance costs on bank loan

Unallocated income and expenses,
net (Note b)

Profit before tax
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Other
Europe Asia America regions  Consolidated
M oM M Hith B &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note a)
(Kizta)
646,673 327,049 293,587 37,857 1,305,166
28,135 14,229 12,773 1,648 56,785
(323)
(44,197)
30,200
(612)
13,600
55,453
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Revenue and Segment Information
(Continued)

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2017
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EEENRDIBER @)

Other
Europe Asia America regions  Consolidated
B M =M Hipih e RE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET FET
(Note a)
(Hiita)
Segment revenue (Note a) AWERE (Mita) 655,338 332,578 301,632 35,534 1,325,082
Segment profit VaR=0isgil 60,079 30,490 27,652 3,258 121,479

Hip B R ER
SNEBRFERI)
& (RARIN)

Other gains and losses (except net
foreign exchange loss)
Depreciation (except moulds)

Gain from changes in fair value of REMEZATEED
investment properties FrE s 2 &7

Finance costs on bank loans BIERHEER

Unallocated income and expenses, AARBAKFZFE
net (Note b) (#iitb)

Profit before tax BRT% AR A

Note a: The allocation of segment revenue is determined based on
destinations of shipment of products.

Note b: Unallocated income and expenses represented other income,
central administration costs and directors’ salaries.

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in Note 3. Segment profit represents the profit
earned by each segment without allocation of other income,
central administration costs and directors’ salaries, other
gains and losses (except net foreign exchange gain/loss),
depreciation (except moulds), gain from changes in fair value
of investment properties and finance costs on bank loan(s).
This is the measure reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment. Revenue reported above represents
revenue generated from external customers. There were no
inter-segment sales in both years.
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(111)
(55,683)

8,300
(676)

10,416

84,225

Hiita: NEBEXRENDEREREMN
fie i B Y 3 T HESE

BriEb : RO BEWRARRSREEAMmYEA
PRITREAMNESH -

I

AEHMEEDBIETBRELRE
B2 &t BRMAR (42 1Y E3)
7 8B MR & — 9 BB AT PR A 4
Fo WARDEEEAMBA - FRITERE
AEE=F HaENMEE (SVE
BN BERFRERIN) E (RAR
M) REMEZ AT EZEFELD
BN MRITERYEER - AT ER
SETZEERRADER HUIEE
BB MFZRE - Ll FrRE 2 2%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B 53R & = KicE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE— T\ =l
- Jegs ALL2 2 s N L
5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. EXBERDEER )
(Continued)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THEERER
The following is an analysis of the Group’ assets and liabilities AT AEBEIRAIZRREESH D
by reportable and operating segment: MEERBEER:
SEGMENT ASSETS D EEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Europe B 200,215 180,856
Asia CEM 105,150 95,010
America =M 78,031 75,359
Other regions HibipE 12,283 10,017
Segment assets DESEE 395,679 361,242
Unallocated assets ROBEEE
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 61,417 25,558
Financial assets designated as FVTPL BRBERATEFEZ
I EE - 1,920
Short-term deposits ySoR- e 127,403 213,362
Bank balances and cash RITEFERR® 469,572 517,924
Investment properties "EYHE 281,000 250,800
Plant, equipment and machinery N N
(except moulds) (R EBRIN) 175,742 175,054
Club debentures BHRES 13,176 13,176
Other receivables E fth & W BR X 35,158 22,157
Tax recoverable FE R FHIE 2,276 1,441
Other unallocated assets (Note) Bt RDBLEE (ML) 25,998 25,550
Consolidated assets HREEE 1,587,421 1,608,184
Note: Other unallocated assets comprised prepaid lease payments, Kz Hth R EEEBRBRAENHEER
deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment H BNBEYE BEREEZE]
and deferred tax assets. & RIEEFIEEE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4R & B IEER &HEKHEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 2T \F=A=+—HILFE

5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. EXBERDEBER @)

(Continued)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued) PEHMEERER (F)
SEGMENT LIABILITIES S EEE
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—t4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRET FET
Europe BOM 11,415 20,337
Asia EEV) 4,694 10,030
America =M 8,947 9,754
Other regions H b= 504 1,092
Segment liabilities (Note) DESEE (Aat) 25,560 41,213
Unallocated liabilities ROREE
Trade payables B SRR 193,194 188,658
Other payables and accruals H i & A~ BR SR M A AR A 127,594 122,885
Deferred income PEIEUT A 17,649 36,901
Secured bank loan BHEMIBEITER 41,409 46,533
Tax liabilities HMIEEE 36,244 40,734
Deferred tax liabilities REFHIEEE 7,757 13,069
Consolidated liabilities IREAaE 449,407 489,993
Note: Segment liabilities represented mould deposits received by each Kz nPaEES—H»HEWERRT
segment. & o
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS FEEFMNER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years FAFERFEEMNEETEBBAE
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as B4R & HEE10% A Ean T
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E i
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FRET
Customer A BEA 398,960 396,997
Customer B ZFB 373,167 368,595
Customer C XFC 197,815 232,588
Customer D =FD N/A' B 134,943
Customer E =PFE N/A'"RiE A 133,422
1 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the t FEE SRR BREAEER LR
total revenue of the Group. FJ10% ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %S B & =MiEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 L2 =T — NE=HI= =S

5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. EXBERDEBER @)

(Continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION it EE R
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the REBZzEEMBRBEBERFEH-
PRC.
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented ERARSEZIERDEEREREE
based on the geographical location of the assets. FREH R T 251 -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong BB 297,379 267,767
The PRC # 201,050 200,684
498,429 468,451
Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred Kiaz: JERBEETEESR T AKEL
tax assets. THIBEE -
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION HeoBEaR
Year ended 31 March 2018 BEZ-_ZF—NF=ZA=1+—HIFE
Other Total
Europe Asia America regions segment  Unallocated ~Consolidated
BN Y| EM HitthE AREE KB &
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FiEx FiEx FiEx FiEx FiEx Tz FiEx
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or EEE B ERFTEM D 5% F k&S
segment assets: B EEE:
Additions to non-current assets  FEiREIEEEL M 1,057 460 75 52 2,284 29,258 31,542
Depreciation ik 1,414 605 1,003 67 3,089 44,197 47,286
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision B BRME AT EREREAL
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or BERBEERETEH D S ‘E‘ = A R E sk
loss or segment assets: DEEE
Interest income on bank deposits  $R177E 7 2 K| 8 A - - - - - 1,813 1,813
Interest income on avallable-for- A HERE 2 78 MA
sale investments - - - - - 1,348 1,348
Rental income ik N - - - - - 5,730 5,730
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 2T \F=A=+—HILFE

5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. EXH R MER »)

(Continued)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) HeoiER (£)
Year ended 31 March 2017 B2 T —+F=HA=+—HIFE
Other Total
Europe Asia America regions segment  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
B T EM HitiE PEAE RAR )
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or LEHEE BN EN s HEFER
segment assets: D EEE:
Additions to non-current assets ~ FEREIAEZ M 755 346 540 36 1,677 20,009 21,686
Depreciation & 1,767 805 1,303 83 3,958 55,683 59,641
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision UL EEEE Hﬂ REGFSEEARARAL
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or BREERFTEM D D EF BB D
loss or segment assets: HEE
Interest income on bank deposits #8177 7 2 K| 8 A - - - - - 2,612 2612
Interest income on avallable-for- AT ERE 2 FIEKA
sale investments - - - - - 398 398
Rental income ik ON - - - - - 4517 4,517
6. Other Income 6. HMbug A
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Rental income He WA 5,730 4,517
Interest on bank deposits SRITERF B 1,813 2,612
Interest on available-for-sale investments AHERE 25 B 1,348 398
Amortisation of deferred income (Note 9) BRI 2 #3H (#1229) 19,252 19,252
Building management fee income BFEEBRA 857 658
Scrap sales 5 65 S om 306 502
Others H 206 1,003
29,512 28,942
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

7. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and

Employees’ Emoluments

(@)

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules

and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2018

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan (Note 2)

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
(Note 3)

Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie

Mr. Cheung Pui

Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William
(Note 4)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Cheung Lun (Note 5)

INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon

Professor Lo Chung Mau

Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita

Total

HITES
REREL (Hi2)
REY &t (Hi23)

REHZL

RIERE
BB L (fi4)

FUTES

KR %L (Hits)
BYFHTES
RAEREL

RERBL

mEMBRESME

b —

4= —=

NEF=ZA=+—HILF

7. E5 FETHBRAERES
<=

(a)

EEME

FRARBEAERN LHRURE
BARGIIRBENESEREETT
BABRBET

BE—ZE-/\F=ZA=1+—Hit

FE
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Fee other benefits Bonus contribution Total
§ER BHNER
ne HiER A sE MR k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note 1)
(Writ1)
- 2,774 816 277 3,867
- 2,103 384 202 2,689
- 1,800 322 174 2,296
- 1,369 237 136 1,742
- 1,520 256 150 1,926
1,500 (317) (251) - 932
120 - - - 120
1,620 9,249 1,764 939 13,572
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

7. EE -FETHAEREES
M2

7. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and
Employees’ Emoluments (continueq)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a)

EExEME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2017

BEx —FT—+F=HA=+—Hi

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Fee  other benefits Bonus contribution Total
Zek RRREH
e H @ Fl biAN AR k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note 1)
(Hiit1)
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HTES
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan (Note 2)  SRIERB &4 (Hfit2) - 2,658 2,804 269 5,731
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie ~ kEB® &+ (#f7#3)

(Note 3) = 1,428 322 146 1,896
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie KBS L - 1,646 338 165 2,149
Mr. Cheung Pui RIE A - 1,342 261 132 1,735
Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, Willam SR L (#7£4)

(Note 4) — 808 264 69 1,141
Mr. Cheung Lun (Note 5) Km k& (H1i25) - 2,615 589 - 3,204
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FHTES
Mr. Cheung Lun (Note 5) RIB LA (H1it5) - = - - -
INDEPENDENT NON- BUFHTES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon R K& 120 - - - 120
Professor Lo Chung Mau B - - - - -
Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita BREEEL - - - - -
Total ek 120 10,497 4,578 781 15,976

102 Allan International Holdings Limited ZE & B FR £ @A R A 7




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

7. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and
Employees’ Emoluments (continueq)

(@)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes:

)

The bonus is determined with reference to the
performance of the individual and the Group.

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan is also the managing director of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the managing
director.

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie was appointed as
Chairman on 17 March 2017.

Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William was appointed as the
executive director of the Company on 28 September
2016.

Mr. Cheung Lun was designated as non-executive
director of the Company from an executive director on
17 March 2017 and appointed as the honorary chairman
of the Company. The emolument for the year ended
31 March 2017 shown above was for his services as
executive director of the Company and the Group.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-
executive director’'s emoluments shown above was for his
service as director of the Company or its subsidiaries. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

mEMBRESME

(2T \F=ZA=t—HILFE

7. %% EETBRAERES

(@ E=M< (&)
Hiat -

(1) EALTDREENALRERR
HIRGE

@ FREBELETARARAZES
R R PR EZME T
BREMESREHESELER
B2ER-

@) KEBEXIN-_T—tF=A
TEHEZERERFE -

@) FEEFBLIR-_Z—XRFNLA
—tNBEZERERRARMNIT
B%-

G FTREER-_ZE—EF=A
TEEHEATEFAEARA
RAEIFATES Y RZER
REIR LXFTRBE_F
—tF=A=+-BLEFEEZ
MEDESARBRTEER
RAKEREREZER-

6 LIBTEEMEAREEH
ERARBRAEEEBEHOR
o EIIFRTEEME AR
BRRBA DR R EKE QR
EHe LB IERITE S
ERBEER/EERARRIR
HREZER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

7. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and
Employees’ Emoluments continueq)

(@)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Professor Lo Chung Mau waived his fees of HK$120,000
(2017: HK$120,000) for the year ended 31 March
2018. Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita waived her fees of
HK$120,000 (2017: HK$120,000) for the year ended
31 March 2018. During the year ended 31 March 2018,
Mr. Cheung Lun waived his salaries and other benefits
of HK$317,000 (2017: Nil) and bonus of HK$251,000
(2017: Nil) in respect of the year ended 31 March 2017.
Except for Mr. Cheung Lun, no other executive directors,
including the Chairman waived any emoluments for both
years.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the
years ended 31 March 2017 and 2018 were all directors
of the Company and the details of their emoluments are
included in (a) above.
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e MRS M

BE_F—\F=A=+—ALFE

7. EE -FETHAEREES
< 2

(a)

(b)

EEMe (£)

EEXHBERBEZE_E—N\F=
A=+ —BLEFEREE®RSD
1288 L (ZE—tF 12848
L) BEFBIREHE_ZT—N
FZA=+—RHILFEREEWS
S1I2BA T (ZE—LF:128
BIT) e kfEERBEZZT—N
FZA=+—RHILFEREE
HE_ZT—+tF=A=+—81L
FEzHeREMBENINIEF
BL(ZT—tF: &) RIEA25
B1FBT(ZE—LF: &) -k
TRfAE REHEHMBMITES
(BREREIE)MEBEEMEOME -

EEME
BE_ZT—tFR-_T—N\F=H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B &R E =K

For the year ended 31 March 2018 Bz—_Z2—N\E=A=+—8

8. Other Gains and Losses 8. HttZFKEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) SNERF (B8 F 5 1,058 (1,719)
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, LEWE HEREH#Z
plant and equipment (E18) &BA 37) 37
Write-off of property, plant and equipment Y - BRE KR B RR ) (428)
Cumulative loss reclassified from other o HEERENRETEIRE
comprehensive income to profit or loss REMEEHKGHENHLE
on redemption of available-for-sale ZERNA
investments (317) (80)
Net gain from changes in fair value of BRBHREAFETEZ
financial assets designated at FVTPL W EEZ AT EZSH
FREL£ME RN FHE 58 315
Others H At (18) (5)
735 (1,826)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Deferred Income

On 13 January 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party (the
“Purchaser”) to dispose of a property, namely, all that 12th
Floor of Zung Fu Industrial Building, No. 1067 King’s Road,
Hong Kong (the “Property”), with a carrying amount of
HK$9,212,000 at a cash consideration of HK$179,000,000.
The fair value of the Property at the date of disposal was
approximately HK$120,000,000 based on the valuation
carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
professional surveyor not connected with the Group.

RHL Appraisal Ltd. is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The fair value was determined based on the direct
comparison method assuming sales of each of the properties
in its existing state and by making reference to comparable
sales evidence of similar nature properties available in the
relevant market.

In addition, pursuant to the agreement, upon completion of
the transaction, the Group continues to occupy the property
by entering into a tenancy agreement with the Purchaser in
respect of the Property for three years commencing from the
date of completion, 3 March 2016. This sale and leaseback
transaction resulted in an operating lease.

Since the sales price of the Property is above its fair value,
the excess over fair value of HK$57,757,000 is deferred and
amortised over the lease period of three years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

9. Deferred Income (continueq)

Movement in deferred income in current year was as follows:

At 1 April 2016
Credit to profit or loss

At 31 March 2017
Credit to profit or loss

At 31 March 2018

Deferred income analysed for
reporting purposes as:

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

e MR RS S

B#E_T— AT

9. IEZEWA &)

EEWARNER ZZEEHMT

HK$'000
FET
RZE— R FEOH—H 56,153
18 25 ] 5 (19,252)
R=—ZT—t&=A=+—H 36,901
18 &% (o] £ (19,252)
R-_ZE—N\F=A=+—H 17,649
2018 2017
—E-N\E T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

FEEWAEESRB SR Z

DT

ERBEE - 17,649
mBAE 17,649 19,252
17,649 36,901
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

10.Income Tax Expense

Current tax:
Hong Kong
PRC Enterprise Income Tax
PRC withholding tax on dividends
distributed by subsidiaries

Under(over)provision in prior years:
Hong Kong
PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Deferred taxation (Note 24)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for

both years.

e MRS M

(E_ T - N\F=ZA=t—HILFE

10. FR8 B XX
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
NEFEHIE
B 2,496 6,472
AR EMER 5,019 5,798
HH B A Bl D R A% B FT R
KR BT 6,535 =
14,050 12,270
BEFEREBTIE GBE) :
BB (136) (717)
AR PR 623 (489)
487 (1,206)
BT IR (M it24) (5,864) 214
8,673 11,278

M EFE 2B ENEH I AGETER

B M 1216.5% 2 TR+ &H -

3 A25% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

10.Income Tax Expense (continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate of 16.5%
Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose
Effect of different tax rates in the PRC
Under(over)provision in respect of prior years
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised
Withholding tax on undistributed earnings
Others

Tax charge for the year

mEMBRES

HE-ZT

10. FRSBiRA X ()

B &

—/A\F= =T

ARER 2 RBMB A HEGES B R
Hip 2 EmRAZFRBADEAM T -

2018 2017
—E-N\E B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
R 351 Al g A 55,453 84,225
#;ziﬁ,%ﬂ SHBIE16.5%
H2HIE 9,150 13,897
TTTD/WZF#ﬁiiﬁRIE%;
5,220 1,868
MAMB WM AHB BT E
(9,678) (5,220)
A B A R R R 2 2 1,467 2,709
BAEFEREBETIR GAE) 487 (1,206)
RERMEBE I RIEFE 1,693 29
ZBIARERTIBEE 2 A
(54) (787)
RO BCAN 2 FEHT 774 756
HAD (386) (768)
RNEFRIEZ I 8,673 11,278
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

11. Profit for the Year

Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging:

Staff salaries and allowances
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes

Total staff costs, including directors’
emoluments

Depreciation for property, plant and
equipment

Direct outgoings in relation to rental income

Release of prepaid lease payments

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses

=F—

E =

e MRS M

NEFE=ZA=+t—HIFE

1. REERF

AEE MR THRIE:
B TH B KOs
BRAEFET B R
METHRAN(BREEME)
WE BEERETE
BREESWRANERH
RN A E R

BEE &
FRAABRERARX
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET T
253,163 254,700
22,170 22,121
275,333 276,821
47,286 59,641
830 795

678 677

2,204 2,205
1,176,304 1,133,545




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B 53R & = KicE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE— T\ =l
12. Dividends 12. R E
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of FAEBRKETARFZ
the Company recognised as distribution LB R 2 IR B
during the year
2018 interim dividend of HK2.0 cents 2 \FHEKRE
(2017: 2017 interim dividend of 2.0
HK2.0 cents) per share —E—tF: T —+F
R HERRR B.2.07 11l ) 6,709 6,709
2017 final dividend of HK10.5 cents —E—FEREKRE
(2017: 2016 final dividend of HK5.5 cents) FR10.55811
per share —E—+tF T —RF
REAAR £.5.57 1) 35,220 18,449
2016 special dividend of HK28 cents ZE—NERRIRE
per share Fhg28E 1 - 93,921
41,929 119,079

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend of HK6.0 cents per share in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2018 (2017: final dividend of HK10.5 cents
per share), in aggregate amount of HK$20,126,000 (2017:
HK$35,220,000) has been proposed by the directors of the
Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming general meeting. The final dividend is expected to
be paid on 12 September 2018 to shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 24
August 2018.

RBERERE RARAIZESZER
KEEE-_ZT—-N\F=ZA=+—H1t
FERABKBEER6.0BIW(ZF—F
FREAREATRI058)  #e
HR2,012B6F BT (ZF— L F:
36228 TT) o Ik EEIKE 2 RER
EARGERENRANFRITZRERE
L REREEHR=_Z—N\F
NA+ZBAERBEFR=2Z—N\FN\A
T+ MHBERNARRRR AT E 2R
%o

111



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B I& 3R & E Mt

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (E_ T -\ F=ZA=+—HILFE
: =
13. Earnings Per Share 13. BIREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to APREARRNTHEBE ANTRERNZF
the owners of the Company is based on the following data: ZEtETIRBEATER |
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings LERERAET S 2 & F|
per share (Profit for the year attributable to (RFEA H LGN A
owners of the Company) mEANZ &) 46,780 72,947
Number of shares
RO E
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
‘000 ‘000
F F
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of FERERZEF M S 2
basic earnings per share Rl I EnE ¢ 335,433 335,433
No diluted earnings per share has been presented for both EMFERERTEERE T B
years as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares in N2 B 5| B AR S B A -

issue.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

14.Investment Properties

mEMBRESME

(2T \F=ZA=t—HILFE

14. IREWY

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fair value NS
Balance at beginning of year FH R 250,800 242,000
Gain from changes in fair value NP EESMEENRT
recognised in profit or loss RIBSBRTER 30,200 8,800
Balance at end of year FREEH 281,000 250,800
Unrealised gain on property revaluation BEEEERAZ
included in profit or loss AERWEEGHAF 30,200 8,800

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals are measured using fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties. These
investment properties are office units and car park spacing.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2018 and 31 March 2017 has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by RHL
Appraisal Ltd., a firm of independent qualified professional
surveyors not connected to the Group.

AEEREREEMZKLEHERSAN
MERDARAFEEAHE UREE
RIWEREME -ZFREVER/MA
=B NE-

i
F

B N\F=A=+—HBR=-F—+
A=+—8B X&KBREVEZA
FEHREREEY EBBENFIEER
BEXRETKMTHERRBRAAE
LAt ABRETEAEmMER-
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE T \E=A=t+—HItFE

14. REWE =)

14.Investment Properties (continued)

The valuation of the investment properties, which falls under
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, has been arrived at by using
direct comparison method by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties in the same locations
and conditions.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The key inputs used in valuing the office units is market unit
rate, taking into account the recent transaction prices for
comparable properties and adjusted for size, view and floor
level of property and timing of the comparable transactions.
The weighted average market unit rate adopted is HK$23,390
per square foot (2017: HK$20,847 per square foot). A
significant increase in market unit rate would result in a
significant increase in the fair value and vice versa. The key
inputs used in valuing car park spacing is consideration for
comparable transaction adjusted for timing of the comparable
transaction and accessibility of the car park spacing.

There were no transfers into or out of level 3 during the year.
All of the Group’s investment properties were pledged to

secure banking facilities granted to the Group at the end of
both years.
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

mEMBRESME

NEF=ZA=+—HILF

BEz—_Z—

15. ¥ -BERRE

Furniture, Moulds
Leasehold Factory Plantand fixtures and and Motor  Construction
land Buildings buildings ~ machinery  equipment tools vehicles in progress Total
BERE L £E8
BELH B3 IENE R#E k% HARIA RE ERIR &t
HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(Note) (Note)
(Hit) (Hit)
COST KAME
At 1 April 2016 RZE-A~FEA-A 125 1,019 185,984 386,977 182,127 42872 9,370 412 808,886
Exchange adjustments SNEHBR = = (7,815) (18,860) (8,159) (86) (237) (397) (35,554)
Adotions RE - - - 3,288 2970 1,754 1,060 12,614 21,686
Disposals/write-off HE/ Mk - - - (7,009) (1,368) (30) (785) - 9,192)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+t#F
and 1 April 2017 ZA=t-Hk
mA—A 125 1,019 178,169 364,396 175,570 44510 9,408 12,629 785,826
Exchange adjustments SNEHBR = = 13,399 32,092 14,105 170 622 3,133 63,521
Adotions RE - - - 2,844 3,365 2,341 813 22,179 31,542
Disposals/write-off HE/ Mk - - - (780) (1,058) (10) (780) - (2,628)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F
=h=t+-A 125 1,019 191,568 398,552 191,982 47,011 10,063 37,941 878,261
DEPRECIATION ik}
At 1 April 2016 RZE-AFEA—-A 5 1,019 73,297 310,997 153,586 35,761 5,164 = 579,829
Exchange adjustments MNERRZ - - (2,245) (15,133) (6,913) (80) (190) - (24,561)
Provided for the year REERE - - 7,257 29,635 17,311 4,112 1,326 - 59,641
Eliminated on disposals/write-off 1% / MR F 138 - - - (6,586) (1,369) (30) (706) - (8,685)
At 31 March 2017 and RZE—t%
1 April 2017 =A=+-Ak
mA—A 5 1,019 78,309 318,913 162,621 39,763 5,594 = 606,224
Exchange adjustments MNERRZ - - 4,546 29,049 13,272 152 580 - 47,599
Provided for the year REERE - - 7,268 26,939 8,592 3,170 1317 - 47,286
Eliminated on disposals/write-off & /B B = = = (773) (1,056) (10) (494) - (2,339)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\%
=A=t+-A 5 1,019 90,123 374,128 183,429 43,075 6,997 - 698,776
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F
=h=t+-A 120 = 101,445 24,424 8,553 3,936 3,066 37,941 179,485
At 31 March 2017 R_E—+tF
=A=t+-AH 120 - 99,860 45483 12,949 4,747 3814 12,629 179,602

et WREETHHNETE TENE:
BHEASEER BELHRM
REE

Note: The buildings situated in the leasehold land had been fully
depreciated but still in use by the Group. The leasehold land is
situated in Hong Kong.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE_T-—N\F=-HA=+—HLHFE
15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. Y% - BERZE o)
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for Ll EEYE BERKRE (ERETE
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line BN 2T E TR T A FRERER
basis at the following rates per annum: -
Leasehold land HE T Over the lease terms
of 912 years
FAE 9124
Buildings and factory buildings BFER IRy E 4% or over the lease
term, if shorter
4%3% (FAE5E )
REEHA
Plant and machinery R 5 5% 1 e e 2R 15%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment RE -RKEBEREZE 20 - 33'/5%
Moulds and tools HARTH 20 — 331/3%
Motor vehicles RE 20%
. =5
16.Prepaid Lease Payments 16. A HEKIE
The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent land use rights AEBZENBAEREBRRALRF
located in the PRC. 2T {E R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EERA & 2 » T
Non-current assets ERBEE 24,287 22,994
Current assets mENE E 678 677
24,965 23,671
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

17.

18.

BE-FT/\E=A=t—BLEE

Club Debentures 17. S B3
HK$'000
FET
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 RZ-ZT—EMA—H -
—E—+F=A=+—8Bx&
—E-NF=A=+—H 13,176
The club debentures with indefinite useful lives are tested for EHENSMESREF S ERESE

impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired. The directors of the Company are of

the opinion that no impairment indication was identified with BIFR-

reference to market value.

Available-For-Sale Investments

Available-for-sale investments comprise:

Investment funds
Debt securities

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Non-current assets
Current assets

Investments in investment funds represent pool investments,
comprising equity and debts securities in various markets.

18. A ERE

AL ERFRBETRESERE AR
AEEREZ2EMHEE RRLER

A ERERE:

2018 2017
—E-N\#F T+
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
KERES 22,673 12,331
Bi5ES 38,744 13,227
61,417 25,558

EER A% 2 D i
ERBEE 61,417 17,010
MENEE - 8,548
61,417 25,558

RENKRERES REREHESG B
BERMENREREBES -
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19.Inventories

Raw materials R A7 #
Work in progress &
Finished goods SUPK i

20. Trade Receivables and Bills

mEMBREEME

BE-FT\F=A=+-AILEE

A
19. 7 &
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
44,766 29,733
21,392 18,688
32,696 39,789
98,854 88,210

20. ERE ZRA N EREE

" . =

Receivable/Other Receivables / HL it FE Uk BR FX
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FE T
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR K 288,967 253,179
Bills receivable FE W R & - 1,010
288,967 254,189
Other receivables (Note) Hth JE AR 5 (A7 aE) 35,158 22,157

Total trade and other receivables EUWE SR M EAth

& U BR R 4B K8 324,125 276,346
Note: As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s other receivables mainly Kz R=E—N\FE=A=+—H K&

include value added tax recoverable of HK$19,390,000 (2017:
HK$11,519,000), which will be recovered within one year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %S B IR E =Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2018 L2 =T — NE=HI= =S

20. EWE ZERA R EWEE

20. Trade Receivables and Bills

Receivable/Other Receivables
(Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables and
bills receivable, presented based on the invoice date which
approximated the respective revenue recognition dates.

/S EA W R )

UTRENEZEREEBEZRIZESR
M (REaEXERBMRL) 252
mA/\*ﬁ_

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E i

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

0 - 90 days 0 -90H 254,204 242,740
91 - 120 days 91 - 120H 32,611 8,861
> 120 days HBiE120H 2,152 2,588
288,967 254,189

The Group maintains defined credit period of up to 90 days.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. In addition, the Group reviews the repayment
history of receivables by each customer with reference to
the payment terms stated in contracts. In determining the
recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any
change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the
date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. In the
opinion of directors of the Company, the trade receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired were of good credit quality
based on good repayment history at the end of the reporting
period and no impairment is necessary for these balances.

REE R AREEEHEOR -RE
EFHEPH ARBCHEEERPZ
EEEARREEPAEEERE ULIN
AEBR2E QKM Z N FTEFRE &
EFEEBYWSEZLE SEEEE
WE SRR EENRHERRERZE
EEZBRANE UETRWE K
AT EE - REIER - ARBEER
B ERNREL R BREZERRE
EERRM WEBESRBE - BAT
FERZEHRRE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

20. Trade Receivables and Bills
Receivable/Other Receivables
(Continued)

As at 31 March 2018, included in the Group’s trade
receivables and bills receivable balance are debtors with
aggregated carrying amount of approximately HK$37,161,000
(2017: HK$18,792,000) which are past due at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss as there has not been significant change in credit quality
and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances. Age of trade
receivables which are past due but not impaired:

Overdue by: BHR
1- 90 days 1-90H
91 — 120 days 91 - 120H
> 120 days HBiE120H
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e MRS M

BE_F—\F=A=+—ALFE

20. EWWE SRR R EWRELE
S HAERBRRR (o)

R-ZE-—N\E=A=+—0 8F&iLsE
EREWE SERREREZEARNZEBEA
FREEA X493, 71681 B L (=T —+
F:1,87982F B )  ZERRRWME
HHEAE 2 HAB AN & B 30 48 1E R B &5 18
BE AEEEXIREANRE RKE
BB FZ 5K IE &2 0] IR B o 7N £ [ 30 4 5k 5%
EREAF[EEAEFRR -BEOHETE
BB EKRE 5 IERE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E i
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FETT FET
37,148 17,342

7 1,135

6 16

37,161 18,792




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

21.Short-Term Deposits/Bank Balances
and Cash

22.

(@)

(b)

Short-term deposits

Short-term deposits are deposits placed with banks or
financial institution for investment purpose. The short-
term deposits carry fixed interest rates with effective
interest rates ranging from 0.16% to 4.05% (2017:
0.03% to 9%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from 0% to 0.3% (2017: 0% to 0.3%) per annum.

Trade Payables

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented

based on the invoice date.

0 - 90 days 0-90H
91 - 120 days 91 - 1208
> 120 days BiE120H

The credit period on purchase of goods is 30 to 90 days.

mEMBRESME

E-E-\F=A=+— AL

4= —=

1. BHER RTRRAE
mfF

22.

(a)

(b)

BHER
RETEREREERIRITHE BH
BAKREEN RHGFHIZETE
BEUEBRMNEEFE FEA
0.16%E4.05% (Z T —+ 4
0.03%%9% ) °

RITEENRE
RITEFRMENERFTE F

B 40%%E0.3% (=T —+ 4
0%Z0.3% ) °
A E SR
BEZZEAHR2INZENESERRZ
BRI DT T
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E— 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
175,891 183,779
14,860 4,009
2,443 870
193,194 188,658

REBR mEKI R Z0HZEEH-
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23.Secured Bank Loan

e MRS M

(E_ T - N\F=ZA=t—HILFE

23. B HRITER

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Secured bank loan, with carrying amount A ?EETEﬁ RITER
repayable (Note): EEEREE (M) -
Within one year —F R 5,124 5,124
Within a period of more than one year ZR—F BN ER
but not exceeding two years HARE X 5,124 5,124
Within a period of more than two years ZHRME  BENBBRF
but not exceeding five years LS 15,372 15,372
Within a period of more than five years AF EEBEA 15,789 20,913
41,409 46,533
Less: Amounts due within one year shown BAERRBEREZ
under current liabilities —FRNEREE (5,124) (5,124)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities 7B R 3ER BB EZ 58 36,285 41,409

Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreement.

The bank loan is variable-rate borrowing which carries interest
at 1-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (‘HIBOR”)
plus 0.8% (2017: 1-month HIBOR plus 0.8% per annum). As
at 31 March 2018, the effective interest rate on the Group’s
borrowing is 1.47% per annum (2017: 1.25% per annum). The
bank loan is secured by the Group’s investment properties
with a fair value approximately HK$281,000,000 (2017:
HK$250,800,000) (Note 14).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

24. Deferred Taxation

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets RIEFRIHE E
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEBE

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

mEMBRESME

E-E-\F=A=+—ALEE
24. IEFERE
REAMBHRAKZ 2IITE & TE

EHRREERABECHEF - AT RAR
B 2WmE W BT IRE R DT :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
552 -

(7,757) (13,069)
(7,205) (13,069)

THAREERZMERE THR
TSEEHEAEARE R

At 1 April 2016 RZZ—R"FWNA—H

Credit (charge) to profit or loss R8s AR B (HRD

At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 RZT—+tF
ZA=+—HEK
“ZT—+FMA—H

Credit to profit or loss P8 25 BR [ B¢

At 31 March 2018 RZZE—\F
=A=t—-H

Withholding
tax on
distributable
Accelerated profit of
tax subsidiaries
depreciation in the PRC Total
B R A ]
A2 EER 2
MERERE EB we
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET T8
(5,594) (7,261) (12,855)
542 (756) (214)
(5,052) (8,017) (13,069)
103 5,761 5,864
(4,949) (2,256) (7,205)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE_ZT-)\F=HA=1+—HILFE
24. Deferred Taxation (continueq) 24, IEEFRIE (#)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax RABERAR AEEBERS AN
losses of HK$72,223,000 (2017: HK$80,470,000) available HER722283F BT (ZT—t%F:
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax assets has 8,047 78 7r) 7] FA DA K 885 R 2R i 1 o
been recognised in respect of these tax losses due to the B 24 DA TE AR 2R g ) 2ROIR » R ph e 6
unpredictability of future project streams. EHEERERECHBEE -
Most of the unrecognised tax losses will expire in various dates AREDARER 2 HBBEEENTRA
through 2022 (2017: 2020). The unused tax losses will be A Bz _—_F(=ZZE—+t
expired as follow: F ZTZFTF) KPR HIEEIE
0T B HR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FE T
31 December 2017 —F—+&F+-_HA=+—H - 23,665
31 December 2018 —E-N\F+ZA=+—H 16,056 14,515
31 December 2019 —E-NF+ZA=t—H 24,693 22,322
31 December 2020 —E_ZF+_-_A=+—H 16,377 14,804
31 December 2022 —E- 4+ -_A=+—H 8,760 -
65,886 75,306
Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely. H A Fia 0] s R Bf 4582 o
Under the EIT Law in the PRC and implementation regulations BRI B R EFEHOAG - RS
issued by the State Council, withholding tax at 5% rate is BMONEBREN R —FTZENF—H—
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by HF% B R E AR TSR FE
the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred K 2 2 B 8. DAS % B9 T8 0 A A R K
taxation has been fully provided for in the consolidated W - 5 8 BT B A RR B & A B B
financial statements in respect of temporary differences HEEMEBHIELERIBEE RirE %
attributable to retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries. WERAT DM
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

mEMBRESME

(2T \F=ZA=t—HILFE

25. Share Capital 25. g7
2018 & 2017 2018 & 2017
“E-N\ER ZE-N\FEER
—E—tHF —E—+tHF
Number of
shares HK$ 000
RGE=E FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREE.10B L2 TR
Authorised: ERE
At beginning and end of the year R F]) 2 5F 4 5 600,000,000 60,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITREE
At beginning and end of the year RE) R F 4B 335,432,520 33,543

26.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes secured bank loan disclosed in Note 23, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, other reserves and
retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a quarterly basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
the directors of the Company, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends
and new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

26. EAXE [ EE

AEEEREN SEBEFRASEERE
AR REREAERE  WEBELEBT R
BaTERRRTEERAOD®R AL
B ERREEEFUAR-—BEHFTT

AEEZEARBEEEERFR 28
ERRITER (R FE2BHE) - FR
ENBREFERARRHER AEIEE
@ EPERDEITRA e R
R g A -

ARRIEZRFERTEARB -EF
EEEARARARERENEBRRIE
RERZ MO -REARFBESH
g ARESEBIBE  BITH
P BITHESKBERRAER  AF
BHBRREEARRE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE T \E=A=t+—HItFE
27.Financial Instruments 27. M T H

27a. Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets MK EE
Loans and receivables EE O E T
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREASEREEE)
Available-for-sale investments At SR E
Financial assets designated at FVTPL EREREATENEZ
B 75 & EE
Financial liabilities mBaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REIEK AR 2 G EE

27b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, financial assets
designated at FVTPL, trade receivables and bills
receivable, other receivables, short-term deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade payables, other payables and
secured bank loan. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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27a. €RI T BRI

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FRET FET
887,005 986,260
61,417 25,558

- 1,920

234,904 235,488

27b. K EEBEEEERBE

AEEZETESR T ASEAH#
HERE BEBREAFER
BZHMBEE BRESKRAK
FEWRIE - AR EUERR - 7T
P RITEHLRE  BNE SR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

27.Financial Instruments (continueq) 27. M T B (»)

27b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 27b. WK EMEEBEREEK (£)

(Continued)
Market risk 7% 7 g
Currency risk B E

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which exposes the Group
to foreign currency risk. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

RN RIE BB A RIAINE &
TEE  EEEAIIINERR -1
WEMERD  NEEAINEFT
BrEBEENREBAGEZER
BanF:

Liabilities Assets
=R gE

2018 2017 2018 2017

ZB-N\F ZT—+F ZB-NF ZT—LF

HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET FET FET

United States dollar (‘USD”) e 13,112 11,654 644,765 557,783

Renminbi (‘RMB”) AR - - 31,250 52,915

HKS$ BT - - 558,888 713,647
Sensitivity analysis BREDN

The Group is mainly exposed to exchange rate
fluctuations of USD, HK$ and RMB against the functional
currency of respective group entities, which is either
HK$ or RMB. As the USD will only vary between
HK$7.75=USD1.00 and HK$7.85=USD1.00 under the
Linked Exchange Rate System, the management of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group’s exposure
to USD relative to HK$ is minimal and accordingly, no
foreign currency sensitivity analysis on USD is presented.

AREBEEAZET - BLEA
REELESEEBNEEY
BT A R 2 IE KK EE
b2 o RAREBEXRGIE - ETRE
7757 7=1.00% 7T ) 7.8578 7T
=1.00% T2 HE &  NAFEE
[ 3R BN 5 B 3 TR B AR R B
TR - B B A ETTEINE
BRERE DT

127



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B I& 3R & E Mt

For the year ended 31 March 2018 2T \F=A=+—HILFE

27.Financial Instruments (continueq) 27. M T B (»)

27b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 27b. WK EMEEBEREEK (£)

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continueq)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 3% (2017: 3%) increase and decrease in functional
currency of respective group entities against the
relevant foreign currencies. These percentages are the
sensitivity rates used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represent
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 3% (2017: 3%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive (negative) number below indicates
an increase (decrease) in post-tax profit where the
functional currencies of respective group entities weaken
3% against the foreign currencies. A 3% (2017: 3%)
strengthening of the functional currencies of respective
group entities against the relevant currencies, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

27.Financial Instruments (continueq)

27b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

RERF BB

Profit or loss for the year

The above is mainly attributable to the exposure to short-
term deposits, outstanding receivables and payables and
intergroup receivables and payables at the year end.

Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate short-term deposits.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate secured bank loan (see Note
23 for details of this loan) and bank balances.

mEMBRESME

BEz—_Z—

NE=HETT R

27. M T B (»)

27b. M EBEE B ERBE (£)

mEEE (E)
Bl (&)
HREDH (&)

Impact of HK$ Impact of RMB
BT E ARMHE
2018 2017 2018 2017
BN\ —T+tF ZB-NF —TLF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
12,575 16,057 783 1,326

bt E B R B F R RS A
72 BT R U BR R K B SRR AR
Ko 5% 18 79 0 Mo % At RR SR R

B o

FI%mmR
AEBNEBERFREE AT
BRI EmB -

AEBETETBAERMER (1t
B REF 1B R KT 723) RIRTT A5 84
AR RENEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

27.Financial Instruments (continueq) 27. M T B (»)

27b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 27b. WK EMEEBEREEK (£)

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
secured bank loan at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the secured bank
loan outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis point (2017:
10 basis point) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis point (2017: 10 basis
point) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended
31 March 2018 would decrease/increase by HK$35,000
(2017: decrease/increase by HK$39,000). This is
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its secured bank loan.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk and credit
risk through its listed and unlisted debt investments
and investment funds classified as available-for-sale
investments and designated at FVTPL. The management
considers these risks are insignificant and therefore no
sensitivity analysis on such risks has been prepared.
However, the management will closely monitor such
exposures and consider hedging such exposures should
the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B iR EZSHIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 L2 =T — NE=HI= =S
27.Financial Instruments (continueq) 27. M T B (»)

27b. M EBREEREREE (&)

27b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations at 31 March 2018 in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade receivables and the Group has
been largely dependent on a small number of customers
for a substantial portion of its business. The top three
customers represent over 83% (2017: 84%) of the
trade receivables at 31 March 2018. The failure of these
customers to make required payment could have a
substantial negative impact on the Group’s profits and
liquidity.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank balances, liquid funds and
unlisted debt securities are limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks in Hong Kong or
financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables set out above, and liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks or financial institutions with
high credit ratings, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.
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WRXREFTR=ZZTE—NF=A
=+ —HARERTESHZED
ﬁ%%%EFZ%#'W$EI
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

27.Financial Instruments (continueq) 27. M T B (»)

27b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 27b. WK REMEEBZEREE (£)

(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowing.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curve at the end of the reporting period.

MEBE 2 /E B

EEERBEARE N&H
EEkEERe MRS FEK
FUHBREEER/EHL
K BARSER RS ERM
B URERERERPINOF
2-EREERRTEEZER

B e

NRFINAEEFTEMBRE
ZHBTAHMFHB - i RIHRE
AEBERARERKEEMBEEE
ZEFABZAMRERSRE
R BERBEMNEERAERE
ME o N BRERFZENNE - itk
mE ATRECERENRE
HRE RS 2 M RIRIERTE

Liquidity tables HEE 2K
Carrying
Weighted 3 months Total amount at
average Less than to 1to2 2t05 Over undiscounted 31 March
interest rate 3 months 1 year years years 5years  cash flows 2018
—E-0\F
i =R - =t FRERE =A=1-A
THRE  SR=MA E-f B ERf AERE REAH ZEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FET FiEr FET FiET FET TET
2018 —E-0\%
Financial liabilities at REBHEAARTIRZ
amortised cost HBER
Trade payables LREEES - 175,891 17,303 - - - 193,194 193,194
Other payables E th R - 301 - - - - 301 301
Secured bank loan RERBITER
- variable rate =35 147 1,434 4,269 5,624 16,416 16,157 43,900 41,409
177,626 21,572 5,624 16,416 16,157 237,395 234,904
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 Bz—_Z2—N\E=A=+—8

27.Financial Instruments (continueq) 27. €T R »
27b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 27b. WK REMEEBZEREE (£)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REELERE (E)
Liquidity tables (Continued) HEEZ & (&)
Carrying
Weighted 3 months Total amount at
average Less than to 1t02 2105 Over  undiscounted 31 March
interest rate 3 months 1 year years years 5 years cash flows 2017
—E-tF
it =R —F -F AAERE —A=1—-H

FanE  SR=@EA E-F 22F ERF BEAE nERE ZFRmEfE
% HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET T TET

2017 =
Financial liabilities at RBHRATIRZ

amortised cost HEEE
Trade payables ERB S5 = 185,226 3432 = = - 188,658 188,658
Other payables LS = 297 = = = - 297 297
Secured bank loan BHEARTER

~ variable rate %8 125 1430 4,955 5,612 16,454 21,458 49,200 46,533

186,953 7,687 5612 16,454 21458 238164 035488

The amounts included above for variable interest rate 7 BEHZERNREHRETE 2
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are HerF R EIR=E st A a3
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates PTEMBKAEBEZRETAZ SR
differ from those estimates of interest rates determined at BHEEs)o

the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BHE_ZT— ) \F=ZA=+—HLFE
27.Financial Instruments (continueq) 27. M T B (»)

27c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets.

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets are determined
(in particular, the valuation technique used), as well
as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorised (levels 1
to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.

Fair value as at

AVE

Financial assets 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
RZB-NE R-ZB—+tF

MEEE =A=t+-—~H =A=+—*H

Investment funds classified HK$22,673,000 HK$12,331,000
as available-for-sale

investments

HEeRED S 22,673,000/ 7T 12,331,000 7T
BAEHERE

Listed debt securities HK$38,744,000 HK$13,227,000

classified as available-for-
sale investments

EHEBRES 38,744,000/ 7T 13,227,000/ 7T
BAEHERE
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DFEER HEREM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

27.Financial Instruments (continueq)

27c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

()

(ii)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and

e MRS EME

HE-T-\E=A=t+—BLEE

27. @ MI & ()

27c. TR T ANV EE (&)

() FEEHHHEEERMBER

financial liabilities that are measured at fair ELFERELEMEER
value on a recurring basis (Continued) RNFEEFE ()
Fair value as at
NFE
Fair value
Financial assets 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 hierarchy  Valuation technique
R=ZB-N\F R-ZZE—t&F
BMkEE =H=1+—H =A=+—H DNFEER HERLN
Investment funds classified - HK$1,920,000 Level 2 Redemption value
as financial assets quoted by the relevant
designated at FVTPL investment funds
with reference to the
underlying assets (mainly
listed securities and
debt securities issued
by listed entities) of the
funds
EeRENDERBRER - 1,920,000/ 7T FEMR ERESKRENBRERT
BATEFE BREESNEBEE (F
BB EE EREMARIETH L

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities, carried at amortised cost, are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models which is based on discounted cash flows
analysis using the relevant prevailing market rates
as input.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of other financial assets and
financial liabilities recognised at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

mEsREHESR)

(i) FEFILFRELTMEE
BRFEGBHIBEEER
MBERREZAFE
MBBEEMMBAGBZAF
B mBHR AR TR
BAEMAEBRN RN
TRENMABRAHER S
EBRESRABESE-

ARREZRR N
TR IR A AR Z
HMBEERMBRE L
FEEEEAFERE-

135



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %S B3 & =Kzt

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE_T— \E=A=t1+—HItEE

28.Share Option Scheme 28. fE IR FE T 2l

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) adopted on 8 August 2012 for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to directors of the Company and eligible
employees, the directors and employees of the Company
may, at the discretion of the directors of the Company, be
granted options (the “Options”) to subscribe for shares in the
Company (the “Shares”) at a price determined by its directors,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which must be a trading
day; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
and the number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point
in time.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years from
the date of its adoption. Options granted must be taken up
not later than 28 days after the date of grant. A consideration
of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the offer of grant of an
option. An option is exercisable on the date when the offer for
the grant of options is made but shall end in any event not later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the options.

No options have been granted during both years under the
Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #r

For the year ended 31 March 2018

29. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising 29

30.

from Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

EUBREEME

BE_Z-/\F=A=+—HIFE

BETHELECEEHER

TRFNAEERRE RS MELD
REZY BRRSIFASED B
BRADELANBER/RTREMNEL
IARKRRERBERARB2HEARE
MERTFOESBEZTDABTRER
ZBfE-

Interest Dividend Secured
payable payable bank loan Total
BHEA
T HIE eI S RITER mEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET FETT T
At 1 April 2017 R—Z—+FWA—H = — 46,533 46,533
Financing cash flows BMERS N 612) (41,929) (5,124) (47,665)
Dividend declared EE KR E - 41,929 - 41,929
Finance costs on bank loan RITE R 2 BB A 612 - - 612
At 31 March 2018 RZZE—\F
=H=+—H - - 41,409 41,409
Related Party Disclosures 30. BEALTHE
(@) Rental expenses paid or payable by the Group to its @ AEEEFNKEMEERXTAE
related parties are as follows: B AT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FETT
Immediate holding company BEEEZERAA
Allan Investment Company Limited DRIEEBR QA 900 900
Fellow subsidiaries EEN )N
Income Village Limited HEAR A A 204 204
Fair Pacific Limited BEFRA A 984 984
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

30. Related Party Disclosures (continued)

(@)

(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases with immediate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries which are included in Note
31 and fall due as follows:

e MRS M

HE-T—\F=A=t+—ALEE

RBEFEGERRK  AEBEE
BERAT RRNBREED
e g EERE (B eRE
iE31) i 8 X R F R EHERK
TRAPEL N

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Immediate holding company HEZERAA
Within one year —F R 900 900
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERF (BREEREMRT) 900 1,800
1,800 2,700

Fellow subsidiaries [ 2 Fff /& A 7]
Within one year —FA 1,188 1,188
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRF (BIEEEMT) 204 408
1,392 1,596

Certain directors of the Company have controls in Allan
Investment Company Limited, Income Village Limited and
Fair Pacific Limited.

The compensation of key management personnel
consists of director’s remuneration as set out in Note 7.

The remuneration of directors of the Company is
recommended by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals, market trends
and conditions with a view to retain and motivate
executives.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE— T\ =l
. PO
31.Operating Leases 3. EEHE
The Group as lessee AEBEHEBEAN
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Minimum lease payments paid during AEEHEEHREHADE
the year under operating leases in S REAERE
respect of rented premises 2,339 2,104
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIBEFELERE  AEBZ A D
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- LEHE PIEEBHEA T 2 EEM
cancellable operating leases, including operating leases with & MBI RERERERBAEN
related parties, which fall due as follows: T
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F N 2,108 2,098
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZEENF (BREEME) 1,183 2,208
Over five years BBAF 107 =
3,398 4,306
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for rented LEHERERHEMERNZES -
premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term ranging HEFYHE—FE=F(ZT—tF:—
from one to three years (2017: one to three years) and rentals FE=F)HARBEENEERANLEE
are fixed throughout the lease period. He o
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

(E_ T - N\F=ZA=t—HILFE

31.Operating Leases (continveq) 1. E€EHE »
The Group as lessor AEEERABEA
Property rental income earned during the year was FAMEBRSWARBISEBEL (ZF
HK$5,730,000 (2017: HK$4,517,000). The property held has — L E A51BITFET) ﬁﬁﬁﬁ#@%iﬁi
committed tenants for the next two years (2017: three years). HMEMEEABARRKMFERLY (ZF—
Fi=F)o
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted REFELERR AEBEBES M5
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: THRRKERAEREFI LA L
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Within one year —F R 6,352 3,353
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERF (BEEREWTE) 2,158 2,343
8,510 5,696

32.

Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of:

— acquisition of property, plant and
equipment
— construction of a factory plant

32. EAREE

2018 2017
—E-N\F T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
[ = W VS
B RREGETBREENRN
B
—BEWE WELIZE
1,556 765
— BRI RE 7,117 20,321
8,673 21,086
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

33. Retirement Benefits Schemes

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong participate in both a
defined contribution scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Scheme”) in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of independent trustees.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by contributions from employees
of 5% of their salaries. The employers will contribute based on
the monthly salaries of employees according to the following
schedule:

e MRS EME

HE-T-\E=A=t+—BLEE

33. RIREFIEHE

BEEMBLAR2EMIATE RN S
AR B R ARG BB R RDI ([RTR
SHEDEER_TTTFT AKX
MR SR B ME AT E RG] 2 R B R TR
Eat @ ([BESE]) - ZFFEE
ERAKEEERDRTE AHEE
HEREAMEFRZBIESRSE -

2mrEEEIZEE  FARKAA
BZ5% B E M ARE AT EHI2RETE
BAREEHFZHRE:

Rate of
Number of completed years of service contribution
5T X AR 7% & HA EEES
Not more than 5 years DPREAEF 5%
More than 5 years but not more than 10 years ZRAFETLZNI10F 7.5%
More than 10 years ZRTF 10%

The employees are entitled to the full benefit of the
subsidiaries’ contributions and accrued returns after
participating in the ORSO Scheme for 10 years or more, or
at an increased scale of 30% to 90% after participating in
the ORSO Scheme from 3 to 9 years respectively. Where
an employee leaves the employment prior to becoming
fully entitled to the employer’s contributions, the excess
contributions are forfeited and the employer may utilise the
forfeited contributions to reduce its future contributions. At 31
March 2017 and 2018, the Group had no material unutilised
forfeited contributions in the ORSO Scheme which may be
used to reduce the Group’s future contributions.

S2mMAEEF et FEZRE A2
FEMBARSEREHRZHFBELA
HRAE - E2MFBRIEIF &S
# Z B30%ZE0%(E = 2 1A - fw &
BRAREE B2 AR = HRATRER: - Bl
Z S TR MEEFERAE
W2 B R REMN ZHK - R=F
—tFR_T-NF=ZA=1+—8"
REEDRA B AL U AT EF0 R B
BEMETER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 2T \F=A=+—HILFE

33. Retirement Benefits Schemes 33. RIKTERIETEl ()

(Continued)

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 65
and with at least 59 days of service under the employment
in Hong Kong. The Group contributes at the lower of 5% of
relevant payroll costs monthly to the MPF Scheme, subject
to a maximum amount of HK$1,500 per month for each
employee, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the subsidiaries operating in the PRC are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. The contributions for the
scheme in the PRC are made based on a percentage of the
average salary as advised by the relevant authority in the PRC.
The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme. The subsidiaries operating in the PRC also
contributed to a local municipal government retirement scheme
for all qualified employees in the PRC. The employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at the rates specified in the rules.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
schemes in the PRC is to make the retired contributions under
the schemes. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

34. Particulars of Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2018
and 2017, all of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the

Company, are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEAREHR

Allan Electric Mfg., Limited
SREXREARAA

Allan International Limited *

Allan Mould Manufacturing Limited
SRIREERRATF

Allan Plastic Mfg., Limited
TREBHERA A

Allan Toys Manufacturing Limited
ShRNARRERAAF

SRTERE (BN BRAE]

BEXIR (BB)ERAR

Artreal Manufactory Limited

BEXTEAERAA

Place of
incorporation

or establishment/
operations
EMBKL & B

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
EBRRAHE/EE

Hong Kong/the PRC
B/ HE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

The PRC
P

The PRC?
P E

Hong Kong
EA

mEMBRESME

(2T \F=ZA=t—HILFE

34. B QRIS

RZE-NFR-_ZE—tF=H
=+—R ARRFEZHMBRAF

2813

RARF 2 2EWMBRR  FHIFWT:

Issued and fully paid share
capital or registered capital
EERTRBZRAAZMER

100 ordinary shares and 50,000
non-voting deferred shares

1007 & 8 % £250,0008%
BREEELRN

55,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
55,000k &R EE1E T EBK

100 ordinary shares
1008 & i# R

3,005 ordinary shares
3,0050% & i ik

270,000 ordinary shares
270,000 & ik

Registered capital of USD49,600,000
(2017: USD45,994,000)

1t & 749,600,000% 1T
(ZZ—+5:45,994,000% T)

Registered capital of HK$75,000,000

& AK75,000,00078 7

2 ordinary shares
2R E R

Principal activities

FEXRHK

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

BEER

Manufacturing of plastic
injection moulds
EEBRFEEA

Property holding and trading
of household electrical
appliances

HENERHERETS

Inactive

TEXH

Manufacturing of household
electrical appliances and
plastic parts

EEFEESER
BRITH

Manufacturing of household
electrical appliances and
plastic parts

EEFEERR
BREH

Trading of household
electrical appliances
HEXEE®
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34. i B A RS @)

34. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continuea)

Place of
incorporation
or establishment/ Issued and fully paid share
Name of subsidiary operations capital or registered capital Principal activities
) NGRS SMARYL EELE ERTRBERADZMER TEEHR
Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares Trading of household
RirEXHERRAA e 2R LB electrical appliances
HEREES
Electrical Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ 1 ordinary share of USD1 Inactive
Hong Kong 1REEIETZEBER EREK
KBRS/ BR
Ever Sources Investment Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares Inactive
EEREARRA B 100MR & @ ik EEXHG
Global Express (HK) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares Inactive
i (B8)ERAR G 2fR & R TEZEY
Good Eagle Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Investment holding
EEREARAA it RERR RERR
Great Yield Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Trading of household
REEBRLAA G 1R E AR electrical appliances
HEREE S
EHTREBEREXERA The PRC? Registered capital of HK$100,000,000  Manufacturing of household
H 1 & 7~100,000,0007% 75 electrical appliances and
plastic parts
EEREERREBTH
HETERE (BN BRAH The PRC* Registered capital of USD3,500,000 Manufacturing and trading
F {2 43,500,000% 7T of household electrical
appliances and plastic
parts
HERHEREERR
BREMH
Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited ~ Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares Trading of household
SREELEERAA EB 1008% & & & electrical appliances
HEREER
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

34. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continuea)

35

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

New Prestige Investments Limited *

Ngai Shing (Far East) Plastic &
Metalwares Factory Limited
2 (BER)BBREBERAA

Progress Associates Limited *

Place of
incorporation

or establishment/
operations

EAUE AR 3

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
0

British Virgin Islands/

Hong Kong
RERAHE/ &R
Total Profits Limited British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RERAHE/BR
Warran Electric Manufacturing Limited  Hong Kong
EREXRRERRAA &t
Well Sincere Investment Limited * Hong Kong
BHREBRATF B
* Direct subsidiaries
4 Wholly foreign-owned enterprises

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

On 25 April 2018, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to sell part of
its land use rights located in the PRC and the properties
situated on the related land for an aggregate consideration
of approximately RMB21 million (equivalent to HK$26 million)
with its carrying amount of HK$14 million. The transaction is
expected to be completed on or before 31 December 2018.

. Event after Reporting Period

(BT —

Issued and fully paid share
capital or registered capital
ERTRBERADZMER

1 ordinary share

T B

100 ordinary shares and 54,000
non-voting deferred shares
100/3 LR k54,000 B R Z

B

1 ordinary share of USD1
REEIRTZ SRR

2 ordinary shares of USD1 each

REEIET L RR
100 ordinary shares
100/ & &

2 ordinary shares
2R E R

*

2

)

35.

e MRS

B Y8 37 56

& et

NE=HETT R

34. i B A RS @)

Principal activities

TEXH

Property investment

e gES

Property holding
SSLRUES

Investment in securities

BHRE

Investment holding
REER

Inactive
EEE

Investment holding

REER

2EIIEHBEELE

RERL - B R BSEETEAERE

ERPRER

RZZE—N\FEHAZ+HH A&EH
—EHIL—HEEWHE
EMAP B D T A RIEE L
HEZYE &HREN2,1008E AR
k& (FZE 12,6008 7T)
1,408 BT - RHGBHR T —N\F
+_A=+—HKZA T/

CHEEER
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36. Statement of Financial Position and 36. A" A B B #E AR R 3k R R R
Reserves of the Company

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property and equipment e 1,378 1,435
Interests in subsidiaries BB A R 76,518 78,455
Amounts due from subsidiaries N ENGIE S 154,843 =
Available-for-sale investments A HERE - 8,548
Deferred tax asset IREFLIAE B 68 41
Club debentures 2MES 10,705 10,705
243,512 99,184
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Other receivables H th JiE UG BR 7k 2,203 1,798
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NG S 1,950 3,358
Tax recoverable JER T IR - 94
Short-term deposits SR-GRCE= 123,718 207,658
Bank balances and cash SRITEBRERE S 37,788 60,590
165,659 273,498
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals H b < 5RIB R E S R AT 23,647 26,436
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHI B A R 3k I8 11,004 12,249
Tax liability HIEEE 16 =
34,667 38,685
NET CURRENT ASSETS BRBEE 130,992 234,813
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERARBERS
LIABILITIES 374,504 333,997
NET ASSETS BEEFE 374,504 333,997
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E
Share capital f& 7 33,543 33,543
Reserves 1 340,961 300,454
374,504 333,997
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE_ZT—NE=A=1+

36. Statement of Financial Position and 36. XD BRI TR RS

Reserves of the Company (continuea) (%)
Movement in the Company’s reserves ANFFEEERE
Capital Capital  Investment
Share  Redemption  contribution  revaluation Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve profits Total
RAEE BREABBHE REABABH REEHHEE REEF ag

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET TET THET FET

At 1 April 2016 R=ZZ-~"FEA—H 109,884 793 28,230 - 172,909 311,816
Profit for the year AEERT - - - - 108,178 108,178
Net fair value loss on available-for-sale ARHEREZ ATEERTE

investments - - - (461) - (461)
Dividends recognised as distribution RIEDEZRE - - - - (119,079) (119,079)
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 R-Z—+5=A=+-Bk

—E—t%MA-H 109,884 793 28,230 (461) 162,008 300,454

Profit for the year AEERF - - - - 81,975 81,975
Fair value gain on available-for-sale investments AHREEREZ AT ERT - - - 269 - 269
Cumulative loss reclassified to profit or loss on BETHEEREANZHER

redemption of available-for-sale investments BHNABEREE - - = 192 = 192
Dividends recognised as distribution RIEDEZRE - - - - (41,929) (41,929)
At 31 March 2018 R-ZE-NE=fA=+-H 109,884 793 28,230 - 202,054 340,961
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Financial Summary

Revenue

Profit before tax
Taxation

Profit for the year

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

3

BR % A A
WA

AREE i

BERE
BEAE

BEFE

B HE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=-A=1+—-HLFE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—®-NF “T-tF "T-AF -F-EF -T-BF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FAET
1,305,166 1,325,082 1,565,325 1,946,003 2,015,405
55,453 84,225 143,012 85,933 105,319
(8,673) (11,278) (7,356) (15,453) (21,862)
46,780 72,947 135,656 70,480 83,457

As at 31 March

R=BA=+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\Fg ZZ—+F ZT—RFE ZT-—HF ZZT—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FHET
1,587,421 1,608,184 1,694,186 1,643,831 1,726,787
449,407 489,993 520,352 568,376 679,621
1,138,014 1,118,191 1,173,834 1,075,455 1,047,166
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